
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Damian Allen 
Chief Executive 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
Issued on: Wednesday, 24 January 2024 

 
Governance Services Officer for this meeting: Sarah Maxfield 
 01302 736723 
 
City of Doncaster Council 
 
www.doncaster.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Agenda 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
To all Members of the  
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Notice is given that a Meeting of the above Committee is to be held as 
follows: 

  
Venue:    Council Chamber, Civic Office, Waterdale, Doncaster DN1 3BU  
 
Date:      Thursday, 1st February, 2024 
 
Time:      10.00 am 
 
BROADCASTING NOTICE 
 
This meeting is being filmed for subsequent broadcast via the Council’s web 
site. 
 
The Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and images 
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that you may be 
filmed and the images used for the purpose set out above. 
 
________________________________________________________________ 

Public Document Pack



 
Items for Discussion: 
 
 Page No.  

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the Public and Press are to be 

excluded from the meeting.  
 

 
3. Declarations of Interest, if any   
 
4. Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd November 2023.  1 - 8 
 
5. Audit Committee Action Log.  9 - 12 
 
6. An update on the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Licensing Service 

Review/ Rapid Improvement Project.  
13 - 22 

 
7. CYPF Commissioning Arrangements.  23 - 32 
 
8. Internal Audit Progress Report for the period: October to December 

2023.  
33 - 52 

 
9. Grant Thornton Auditor’s Annual Report 2022/23.  53 - 90 
 
10. Grant Thornton - Audit Findings (ISA 260) report 2022/23 - Final 

Version - Information only.  
91 - 144 

 
 

 
 

Members of the Audit Committee 
 

Chair – Councillor Austen White 
Vice-Chair – Councillor Glenn Bluff 

 
Councillor Sue Farmer, John Healy and Dave Shaw 

 
Co-opted Member: Dr Stuart Green 
 
 



A. 1 

CITY OF DONCASTER COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY, 23RD NOVEMBER, 2023 
 
A  MEETING of the AUDIT COMMITTEE was held at the COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC 
OFFICE, WATERDALE, DONCASTER DN1 3BU, on THURSDAY, 23RD NOVEMBER, 2023,  
at 2.00 pm. 
 
PRESENT:  

Chair - Councillor Austen White 

Vice-Chair - Councillor Glenn Bluff 

 

Councillors Sue Farmer, John Healy and Dave Shaw. 

 
APOLOGIES:  
 
An apology for absence was received from Dr Stuart Green. 

 
104 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY  

 
Councillor Dave Shaw declared a non-disclosable interest during consideration of Agenda Item 
6, ‘Breaches and Waivers to the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules’, in relation to Appendix 2, 
‘Ubricity On-Street Residential Electric Vehicle Charging Pilot Scheme’, as being a local ward 
Member for the Town ward and a resident of Bennetthorpe area. 
 

105 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 27TH JULY 2023 AND THE EXTRAORDINARY 
MEETING HELD ON 12TH SEPTEMBER 2023  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 27th July 2023 and the extraordinary 
meeting held on 12th September 2023 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair. 

 
106 AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTIONS LOG  

 
The Head of Internal Audit presented the Audit Committee Actions Log which provided an 
update on actions agreed during past Audit Committee meetings, allowing Members to monitor 
progress against all actions, ensuring that satisfactory progress was being made. 
  
Members noted that four actions had been completed and the outstanding action was 
progressing in accordance with the agreed timescales. 
  
In response to a question from the Vice-Chair, the Head of Internal Audit clarified that the 
action, as set out at Appendix 1 of the report in relation to the Taxi Licensing service related to 
an action which had arisen from the Audit Committee’s July meeting, following a review of the 
service reported to the Committee in February this year. A progress report was to be submitted 
to the meeting in February 2024. 

RESOLVED that the progress being made against the actions agreed at the previous 

Audit Committee meetings, be noted. 

107 BREACHES AND WAIVERS TO THE COUNCIL'S CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES  
 
The Head of Strategic Procurement introduced a report which detailed all the Waivers and 
Breaches to the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules for the period 1st March 2023 to 31st 
August 2023. The report provided a summary of the number of new waivers and breaches 
recorded for each directorate since the last Audit report presented to the Committee in April 
2023 and October 2022 for comparative purposes. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

A. 2 
 

  
Due to the realignment of the Council’s directorates, the Chief Executives directorate had been 
included in the figures going forward, the majority of spend was previously incorporated in the 
Corporate Resources directorate. 
  
The Council at its meeting in September 2023 had approved changes to the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules.  The new rules were being embedded across the Council. The report further 
set out details of the Provider Selection Regime (PSR) Rules coming into force on 1st January 
2024 under the Health and Social Care Act 2022, regarding procuring health care services 
contracts in England. The Contract Procedure Rules would be amended in January 2024 to 
reflect the changes. Small technical changes would also be made to Contract Procedure Rules 
in respect of new procurement value thresholds announced. The changes would be reported to 
the Audit Committee meeting in April 2024. 
 
It was noted that three new breaches had been reported for the period, along with two resolved 
breaches and three unresolved breaches. There had been a decrease in the number of 
approved waivers to the Contract Procedure Rules for this period from 16 waivers to 11, to that 
reported to the Committee in April 2023, details of which were provided for in the report and 
accompanying appendices. 
  
In response to questions from Members seeking clarification in relation to the breach relating to 
Supported Accommodation and Floating Support Services for Young Families and Parents and 
whether lessons had been learnt for the future when procuring contracts, the Head of Strategic 
Procurement explained that the breach occurred as the service area made a late request for a 
waiver which was not compliant with Contract Procedure Rules rationale for allowing a waiver. 
The contract had since been transferred from Adult services to the Children’s service 
commissioning team. The contract had been formalised for the period of the breach until the 
matter was resolved and the service had been recommissioned to ensure that contracts were in 
place for the breach period up to May 2024. It was noted that officers were made fully aware of 
the need to achieve compliance and assurances had been provided that this situation would not 
happen again. The Monitoring Officer provided further assurance that the Council’s 
arrangements for approval of waivers were robustly managed, which clearly demonstrated that 
arrangements were working by the waiver being rejected. 
 
The Vice-Chair welcomed the report and congratulated Officers for the reduction in the 
breaches and waivers and the robust procedures in place. In response to a question regarding 
the Ubricity on-Street Residential Electric Vehicle Charging Pilot Scheme, as set out at 
Appendix 2 of the report, it was explained that currently electrical charging infrastructure was a 
niche market which was driven by subsidiaries and therefore there was an insufficient supply of 
on street electrical chargers which was mainly led by commercial companies. However, it was 
pointed out that the Ubricity on-Street pilot was a unique scheme as it was Government led and 
the Council had been successful in bidding for £2m grant funding. The Council had to comply 
with the requirements of accessing Government grant funding and the short timescales in place 
for the Council to be able to access that funding, which did not allow for a best value 
procurement process. The Director of Corporate Resources further explained that the company 
was piloting different technologies and wanted someone in South Yorkshire to pilot the scheme. 
She highlighted the risks associated with the scheme and the challenges involved in testing the 
different forms of technology and challenges around the use of technology by communities. The 
company had chosen from their data set the areas where they wanted to test technology which 
allowed for engagement with residents in identified areas. Members were assured that there 
was no obligation for the Council to enter into a contract agreement with the Ubricity in terms of 
future contracts for electric vehicle charging. She highlighted the difficulties faced by the Council 
in ensuring comprehensive on-street electric vehicle charging access for all properties across 
the Borough, in particular terraced housing. 
 
The Vice-Chair congratulated officers for their success in bidding for the Ubricity Scheme. 
Whilst welcoming partnership arrangements with private partners, where there were no initial 
costs to the Council in setting up the infrastructure for electric charging, the Vice-Chair asked 
whether the Council had appropriate procurement procedures in place, rather than a waiver 

Page 2



 

A. 3 
 

having to be raised. It was explained that currently such contracts are captured by the 
Concession Contract Regulations 2016, but this may be subject to change in the future. 
 
A Member referred to the risks, costs to the Council and best value for money associated with 
this scheme and asked that the Committee revisit this issue in six months’ time. It was 
subsequently agreed that Overview and Scrutiny be requested to review the pilot scheme, prior 
to the scheme being rolled out across the Borough.  
 
Whilst being supportive of the Ubricity On-Street Residential Electric Vehicle Charging pilot 
scheme, Councillor Shaw as local ward Member for the Town ward expressed disappointment 
that neither he or residents in the ward had been consulted regarding the proposals and had 
been informed that the works in relation to the scheme were scheduled to commence shortly. It 
was agreed that this issue would be raised with the lead officer.  
 
The Head of Strategic Procurement responded to several questions from Members seeking 
clarity relating to the breaches, in respect of numbers 2.1, Buildings Materials and Timber, 2.2 
Kitchens, 2.3 Building Materials and 2.4 and 2.5 Modular Buildings, as appended to Appendix 1 
of the report. She explained the rationale for the breaches and updated Members on the 
timeframe for resolution of some of the breaches. She also provided clarity in relation to the 
waiver in respect of Doncaster Supported Living Service. 
 
Councillor Shaw asked why only one quotation had been obtained in respect of the breach 
relating to Modular Buildings, as outlined in Section 2.4 of Appendix 1. The Head of 
Procurement undertook to provide Councillor Shaw and the Audit Committee with further 
details.  
 
Following further questions from the Chair, the Head of Strategic Procurement confirmed that 
she was satisfied with the Council’s current arrangements for procurement of contracts which 
were compliant with Contract Procedure Rules. In relation to mandatory training for officers on 
Contract Procedure Rules, an e-Learning module was currently being developed, which would 
be rolled out in January 2024. Face to face training continued to take place with officers. The 
Strategic Procurement Team were working with Children’s services regarding contracts and the 
data and contracts formerly under the Doncaster Children’s Services Trust that had been 
novated into the Council systems.  However, she advised that these needed to be strengthened. 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that he was happy with the arrangements regarding Contract 
Procedure Rules compliance. In future the Council would benchmark other local authorities in 
terms of their arrangements in respect of Contract Procedure Rules. 
 
Members welcomed the improvements made and were pleased to note that Officers involved in 
the procurement of goods would be receiving mandatory training from the Strategic 
Procurement Team, which provided assurance to the Committee that arrangements were 
working effectively. 
 

RESOLVED that 
  
1) the Waivers and Breaches recorded for the period between the 1st of March 2023 to 

the 31st of August 2023, be noted; and 
 

2)  the work undertaken by the Strategic Procurement Team (SPT) to ensure 
compliance and deliver services, be noted. 

  
108 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2023 TO OCTOBER 2023  

 
The Head of Internal Audit presented a report which updated Members on the work undertaken 
by Internal Audit and opinions issued for the period July to October 2023.  
  
The Head of Internal Audit clarified points raised by the Committee in relation to the number of 
overdue management actions and completed actions arising from the school 
audits/investigations.  It was noted that Internal Audit had agreed revised completion dates with 

Page 3



 

A. 4 
 

management relating to the Place directorate that would not have an adverse impact on the 
service. 
 
In respect of the Section 106 agreements review, the Head of Internal Audit advised that the 
review had concluded that the contract had been procured in accordance with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules and value for money obtained. The review had identified that there 
were no unspent S.106 monies and Internal Audit had recommended that improvements should 
be made to the S.106 process. It was noted that a wider review of S106 monies was ongoing.   
 
In reviewing the overdue high-risk level and medium to low risk level management actions, 
Councillor Dave Shaw requested that in order for Members to be able to gain a better 
understanding of the information presented and for them to carry out a detailed critical analysis 
of the data, that in future an analysis be provided in relation to whether the risks identified for a 
particular period were new risks, or existing risks carried forward from the previous reporting 
period, as he felt that it was not apparent from the information provided at the table at paragraph 
3.6 of the report. The Head of Internal Audit gave an undertaking to present the statistics to the 
Committee in a different way in the future, to highlight those that have been overdue in previous 
reporting. Following further questions, Members were assured that there were no concerns in 
terms of the overdue high-risk level management actions risks identified and that if any issues of 
concern did arise, these would be brought to the Committee’s attention. It was noted that 
Doncaster was in a good position compared to other local authorities in terms of the risks to the 
Council. 
 
The Vice-Chair, in noting the reduction in the number of overdue management actions, 
requested that in future the Committee should be provided with a summary of the medium to 
low level risks in a simplified format to identify the issues, the original implementation date, 
projected implementation date and current implementation date. It was subsequently agreed 
that information continued to be presented in the current format in terms of the categories of 
risks and to be reviewed by the Committee at a later date in terms of whether the current 
information added any value, and how they wished for information to be presented in the future. 
 
Due to the reduction in the number of overdue actions, the Vice-Chair asked whether a deeper 
analysis should be carried out next year in relation to the scope of the Audit to identify any 
problems, the Head of Internal Audit provided assurances that every action raised relating to 
high-risk matters were validated by the Internal Audit team as were medium to low actions and 
the number of low risks related to small numbers of overdue outstanding recommendations not 
yet been implemented. However, Internal Audit would continue to review risk-based audits as 
part of their work on the draft Audit Plan. Members would be given the opportunity to input into 
the process in terms of potential risks, prior to the draft Audit Plan being presented to the 
Committee in April next year. The External Auditor reinforced the comments made by the Head 
of Internal Audit that as part of Internal Audit’s work when reviewing the core internal controls of 
the Council, also looked at areas of potential risks for the Council. 
 
In response to a further question from the Vice-Chair, the Head of Internal Audit confirmed that 
a second line risk assessment was carried out annually by managers in relation to risks and 
controls in their respective area, where each Head of Service had the opportunity to flag up any 
concerns or areas of weakness regarding governance, which may be considered for inclusion in 
the Annual Governance Statement.   
 
Following questions from the Chair, the Head of Internal Audit advised that a member of staff 
had been seconded to the senior Auditor position in the team and he hoped to appoint someone 
permanently to the post in future.  Resources were in place to look at data driven work and to 
build data capacity in the team. The Internal Audit team was working in partnership with other 
teams within the Council in terms of gathering data. In relation to the Head of Internal Audit’s 
Annual report, he was confident he would be able to give a positive opinion at the Committee’s 
meeting in April 2024. 
 
To conclude, in terms of Internal Audits performance during the year, it was acknowledged that 
the Key Performance Indicators were good, and no new areas of concern had been identified as 

Page 4



 

A. 5 
 

part of the Head of Internal Audits opinion. The Committee was assured that the risk, 
governance, and control arrangements were satisfactory. 
  

RESOLVED to note:- 
  

(1)    the position of the Internal Audit Plan; 
  
(2)    the Internal Audit work completed in the period; 
  
(3)    the position with regards the implementation of management actions arising from 

Internal Audit recommendations; and 
  
(4)    the current position regarding the ability to deliver the annual opinion over the 

Council’s risk, governance and control arrangements. 
  

109 PREVENTING AND DETECTING FRAUD AND ERROR REPORT OCTOBER 2022 TO 
SEPTEMBER 2023  
 
Peter Jackson, Head of Internal Audit presented the report which summarised the work 
undertaken by the Council during the period October 2022 to September 2023 to prevent. detect 
and investigate fraud and corruption in line with the Government’s Fighting Fraud and 
Corruption Locally Strategy. Paragraph 5 of the report set out details of the outcomes of the 
Council’s anti-fraud activity to counter act fraud. 
 
Further to the publication of the report, the Committee noted an amendment to the 
Recommendation at paragraph 7 of the report, which should read as ‘The Audit Committee is 
asked to support the production of the Preventing and Detecting Fraud and Error report and 
note and comment on the report provided.’  The Chair also highlighted an error at page 49 of 
the agenda papers, and it was noted that the Appendix should follow the cover report.  
 
The Chair commented positively on the work being undertaken by the Finance Team, Internal 
Audit team and teams across the Council in the prevention and detection of fraud, which 
provided the Audit Committee with assurance that the Council’s governance and risk control 
arrangements were effective. The Head of Internal Audit confirmed that the work had 
contributed to his overall opinion of the overall risk of governance and control.in the Council. 
  

RESOLVED that the Preventing and Detecting Fraud and Error report and the errors, as 
outlined above be noted and supported. 
 

110 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (AGS) 2022/23 - 
DRAFT ISA 260 REPORT TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE  
 
Gareth Mills, Director, Grant Thornton, provided an update in relation to the External Auditor’s 
ISA 260 report, which summarised the key findings and other matters arising from the work 
undertaken by the External Auditor for 2022/23 on the Council’s financial statements audit of the 
accounts, prior to issuing their opinion on the Council’s financial statements. The Value for 
Money report for 2022/23, as part of the External Auditor’s Annual Report would be presented to 
the Committee at the meeting in February 2024. 
 
Prior to presenting the report, the Director thanked the Committee for extending the deadline for 
completion of the External Auditor’s audit work. Members’ attention was drawn to the key 
headlines, as set out at page 3 of the External Auditor’s Executive summary of the ISA 260 
report, including:- 
 

• no audit adjustments had been identified impacting on the council’s outturn position and 
useable reserves  

• although there were adjustments in relation to the value of the Council’s Pension 
Scheme, Doncaster’s analysis and judgement to include the Pension as an asset on the 
balance sheet was correct and ahead of the curve. 

Page 5



 

A. 6 
 

• aspects of the External Audit’s work outstanding were to be completed within the next 
few weeks. 

 

Since writing the report, Perminder Sethi, updated the Committee regarding two further 
adjustments identified on the balance sheet in respect of the valuation of schools, which 
had been undervalued by £2.8m, which was due to a calculation error in the valuation. The 
second adjustment related to £0.8m spent on Doncaster Archives that had been incorrectly 
de-recognised. Both adjustments would be updated in the External Auditor’s final audit 
findings report. 
 
The Director, Grant Thornton commended the Finance team for their significant achievement for 
completion of the draft Statement of Accounts within the deadline of 31st May 2023, which had 
placed Doncaster in a favourable position compared to other Local Authorities. It was further 
reported that to date no issues had arisen in relation to the audit. The External Auditor 
continued to have a good level of engagement with the Council’s Finance team whilst 
undertaking the audit. The accounts were on schedule to be completed within the next few 
weeks, which placed Doncaster in a good position compared to other local authorities across 
the country. In relation to the External Auditor’s work regarding the Council’s Value for Money 
arrangements, Members were informed that it was anticipated that this was to be concluded and 
presented to the Committee at its meeting on 1st February 2024. No issues or concerns had 
been identified as part of the External Auditor’s work. 
 
Following the presentation of the report, the Chair on behalf of the Committee thanked and 
congratulated both the Finance Team for completion of the accounts and the External Auditor 
for auditing of the accounts, given the continuing challenges and conditions to complete the 
audit this year. The Committee recognised the positive achievement in completing the audit 
within timescales to that of other local authorities and, despite the challenges, had raised the 
bar, which further demonstrated that the Council’s finances were well managed.  
 
The Chair referred to some local authorities being served with a Section 114 notice and sought 
assurances from both the External Audit and the Assistant Director of Finance in terms of the 
Council’s financial position. The External Auditor stated that Doncaster’s was in a good position 
financially, compared to other similar size local authorities, however, he highlighted that Adult, 
Social Care and Children’s Services were placing significant pressures on local authorities, but 
Doncaster’s financial position meant it could better deal with such issues. In relation to the 
medium to long term position, in common with other local authorities it was highlighted that the 
significant pressures faced by local authorities needed to be planned for. However, Doncaster 
was not deemed as a high-risk authority, as it had put in place contingencies to deal with the 
national difficulties posed. However, the External Auditor spoke of the further difficulties faced 
by local authorities in the future, due to the increase to public spending.   
 
Faye Tyas, Assistant Director of Finance added that the Council had set a balanced budget, 
which was being closely monitored. She spoke of the significant financial challenges placed on 
the Council, due to pressures in Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, together with 
inflationary pressures and the position regarding the increase in the Dedicated School Grant 
(DSG) deficit, which were all impacting on the Council and its ability to plan for the long term 
regarding the Council’s future finances. It was confirmed that at the present time, the Council 
does not envisage serving a Section 114 notice. As part of the budget setting process, leading 
to the Council budget consideration in February next year, a review would be undertaken in 
terms of the robustness of the budget proposals and the level of reserves.  
 
In response to questions by the Vice-Chair, the Assistant Director of Finance confirmed that the 
DSG override remains in place, therefore the overspend is carried forward into next year.  The 
Council continues to review the position in relation to the DSG spend and progress plans to 
reduce spend, focusing on delivering best value. The Council is in dialogue with CIFPA and 
Newton, and the DfE regarding the overall funding position and continues to identify further 
opportunities, however, to date this work has identified insufficient additional options, to those 
already being progressed, to meet the current funding gap. In terms of the risks to the Council, 
the Director, Grant Thornton advised that nationally the override was in place until the 2025/26 

Page 6



 

A. 7 
 

financial year and any potential risks for the financial sector were likely to be from the 2026/27 
financial year. He highlighted that it was not unusual for a local authority to be in deficit in terms 
of the significant costs in respect of the DSG. 
 
Following a question by the Chair in relation to Paragraph 10 of the draft Annual Governance 
Statement, the Director of Corporate Resources clarified the key governance officers in the 
Council and partners who had been consulted regarding the draft Annual Governance 
Statement, including, the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer, Caldicott Guardian and SIRO, 
had provided additional assurance within their respective areas. Each Manager had been 
engaged to look at each of their service areas and report any issues of concern up through the 
organisation. She outlined the cross-cutting approach used across the Council and its partners, 
including St Leger Homes and the former Doncaster Children’s Services Trust (DCST) 
regarding strategic functional areas that were potentially areas of concern and would be brought 
to the Committee as part of the Annual Governance Statement.   
 
The Director of Corporate Resources then provided an update in relation to the completion and 
actions relating to the Social Care Data Quality, as outlined on page 7 of the Annual 
Governance Statement.  
  
To conclude, the Assistant Director of Finance wished to place on record her thanks to the 
Finance Team for their continued work given the challenges faced this year. She also extended 
her thanks to the External Auditor, Grant Thornton for their work to complete the audit in a 
timely manner. The Chair on behalf of the Committee, acknowledged the high level of work 
undertaken by the Finance Team in maintaining the completion of the accounts within the 
statutory timeframe and the good position of the Council. He expressed his appreciation for the 
hard work undertaken by the Finance Team and Grant Thornton who had contributed to the 
process.  
  

RESOLVED that  
  

(1)    the contents of the draft external audit ISA 260 report, be noted; 
  
(2)    the Letter of Representation included in the draft ISA 260 report, be endorsed for 

signature by the Chair of the Audit Committee and the Chief Financial Officer; 
  
(3)    the Statement of Accounts 2022/23, be approved; 
  
(4)    the Annual Governance Statement 2022/23, for signature by the Mayor and the 

Chief Executive, be approved; and 
  
(5)    delegated authority be given to the Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the 

Chair, to agree any adjustments to the Statement of Accounts 2022/23, following the 
completion of the audit by Grant Thornton, should any changes be necessary, prior 
to signing by the Chief Financial Officer and the Chair of the Audit Committee. 

  
111 GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE  

  
Gareth Mills, Director, Grant Thornton introduced a report which provided Members with an 
update on progress made on delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s External Auditor as 
of 6th November 2023 and Sector update. 
 
It was anticipated that the External Auditor would issue its Annual Report by the end of 
December 2023 and their findings of the Accounts would be submitted to the Audit Committee 
meeting, scheduled in February 2024. 
  

RESOLVED that Grant Thornton’s Progress report and Sector Update be noted.  
  
 
CHAIR:                                                       DATE:                       

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report 
 
 

         Date: 1st February 2024 

To: The Chair and Members of Audit Committee 

Report Title: AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTIONS LOG 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. The Committee is asked to consider the attached Audit Committee Actions Log, 
which updates Members on actions agreed during Audit Committee meetings. It 
allows Members to monitor progress against these actions, ensuring satisfactory 
progress is being made. 

 
2. All three actions are complete. There are no remaining actions. 

 
EXEMPT REPORT 

 
3. The report does not contain exempt information. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.  The Committee is asked to note the progress being made against the actions 
agreed at the previous committee meetings 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

5. Regular review of the actions agreed from the Audit Committee meetings enables 
the Committee to ensure it delivers against its terms of reference and is responding 
to important issues for citizens and the borough. The action plan update helps 
support openness, transparency and accountability as it summarises agreed 
actions from reports and issues considered by the Audit Committee. 

BACKGROUND 

6. The Audit Committee Actions Log, which is updated for each Audit Committee 
meeting, records all actions agreed during previous meetings. Items that have been 
fully completed since the previous Audit Committee meeting are recorded once as 
complete on the report and then removed for the following meeting log. Outstanding 
actions remain on the log until completed. 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7. There are no specific options to consider within this report as it provides an 
opportunity for the Committee to review and consider progress made against 
ongoing actions raised during previous Audit Committee meetings 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

8. Not Applicable. 
 

9.  Legal Implications  

Legal implications were not requested in relation to this report. 

10.Financial Implications  

Financial implications were not requested in relation to this report. 

11. Human Resources Implications  

Human Resources implications were not requested in relation to this report. 

12. Technology Implications  

      Technology implications were not requested in relation to this report. 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

13. The Audit Committee contributes to the effective management of risks in relation 
to audit activity, accounts / financial management / risk management and other 
governance / regulatory matters. 

CONSULTATION 

14. The Audit Committee Action Log has been produced following consultation with 
members of the Audit Committee to address the risk of agreed actions not being 
implemented. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

15. None 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

16. None 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  

Peter Jackson, Head of Internal Audit  

01302 862938| peter.jackson@doncaster.gov.uk 

Faye Tyas, Assistant Director of Finance & Technology 

01302 862606 | faye.tyas@doncaster.gov.uk

Page 10

mailto:peter.jackson@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:faye.tyas@doncaster.gov.uk


 

APPENDIX 1 
AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION LOG – 1st February 2024 

Follow-up actions from previous meetings:- 
Minute/ Action Progress update Responsible Officer Completed (Y/N) 
Meeting 23rd November 2023 
Internal Audit Progress Report – Overdue 
Management Actions 
 
Committee requested that in future an analysis 
be provided in relation to whether the risks 
identified for a particular period were new risks 
or existing risks carried forward from the 
previous reporting period, as it was not 
apparent from the information provided in the 
table  

 
 
 
The table setting out the overdue 
management actions has been revised to 
reflect this information 
 
 

 
 
 
Peter Jackson 

 
 
 
Y – Complete 

 
 
. 

107 Breaches and Waivers to the Council's 
Contract Procedure Rules  
 
A question was asked why only one quotation 
had been obtained in respect of the breach 
relating to Modular Buildings. The Head of 
Procurement undertook to provide Audit 
Committee with further details 
 

 
 
 
Information requested was provided by 
email on 10th January 2024 

 
 
 
Holly Wilson 

 
 
 
Y - Complete 

  

P
age 11



Minute/ Action Progress update Responsible Officer Completed (Y/N) 
Meeting 27th July 2023 
Internal Audit Progress Report – Taxi 
Licencing 
 
A progress report on the Taxi Licensing 
service area was asked to be presented to a 
future meeting of the Audit Committee and be 
included on the Committee’s Work Plan 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The service will present a report to the 
February 2024 meeting of the Audit 
Committee 

 
 
 
Kellie Hopkins 

 
 
 
Y – report presented 
to 1st February 2024 
Audit Committee. 

 

 

P
age 12



 

 

 

 

 

Report 
 
 

         1 February, 2024 

To the Chair and Members of the Audit Committee  

 

Report Title: An update on the Hackney Carriage/ Private Hire Licensing 
service review/ Rapid Improvement Project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. This report aims to give members of the Audit committee with an update on 
progress of the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire licensing review and identified 
outstanding audit actions.  
 

EXEMPT REPORT 

2. This report is not exempt. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

3. There are no specific recommendations, members are asked to consider the 
updated information provided in the report. 

 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

4. The review of the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (HC/PC) licensing process will 
improve the service delivered to the citizens and those individuals in the trade in 
Doncaster. 

 

BACKGROUND 

5. The audit report undertaken in June 2022 provided a partial assurance opinion 
over the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Licensing Service. A limited assurance 
opinion would have been given, due to weaknesses identified during the audit, but 
this was not necessary as significant progress has been made rectifying matters 
brought to the attention of management through the audit. This has, however, 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



resulted in delays in finalising and issuing the audit report as officer resource has 
been targeted at rectifying the matters raised.   
 
To address wider issues faced by the service, not just for the taxi licensing regime 
a  Rapid Improvement Plan (RIP) was instigated to assist in identifying and 
developing solutions to the deficiencies experienced by the current information 
system serving the service.  There was a clear need to stabilise the current 
technology to ensure the service could operate whilst delivering changes and a 
transformation to improve customer experiences and create efficiencies within the 
team. 

The team have been significantly involved, resource wise, in the review of the 
service and the rapid improvement plan.  This has been needed to ensure that 
business analyst colleagues have a full understanding of how the work is 
undertaken and team members views in respect of future improvements. 

The table below provides an overview since June 2023 of the licensing teams 
involvement to date and work undertaken alongside the business analyst team for 
service change, whilst operating BAU. The work undertaken so far as part of the 
RIP project has gone some way to improve performance within the team. 

21/06/23. Licencing Rapid Improvement Project plan has been agreed 
with Service 

21/06/23. Project scope developed and agreed 
30/06/23. Data collection completed 
30/06/23. Performance baseline and Process maps data captured 
30/06/23. Current state report first draft completed and shared with the 

team 
30/06/23. Next steps and immediate deliverables agreed to stabilise 

current technology 
30/06/23. Reviewed telephone numbers and email addresses online 
30/06/23. Website review Workshop meetings set up 
10/07/23. DBS checks completed 
10/07/23. Calls transferred to Netcall solution to understand number of  

calls coming into the service  
10/07/23. BA team met with service and provided narrative around some 

of the sections of the report 
10/07/23. Assigned BA resources to re-design New Driver process 
13.07.23. Confirmed scope of deliverables with audit 
13/07/23. Testing team carried out testing on the Vehicle application and 

booking process and fed back findings to Project Group 
13/07/23. Taxi Driver application Form requirements gathered from 

Service 
20/07/23. Meet with Audit to discuss scope and deliverables for Audit 

committee update 
31/07/23. Review of CDC Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 

Policy carried out, recommendations made relating to the 
insurance requirement and wording change around section 5.4 
on criminal record 

Page 14



31/07/23. Comparison of the licensing policy against the DFT standards 
carried out. Recommendations offered in relation to a robust 
recording system for complaints 

31/07/23. Training providers identified for the safeguarding and knowledge 
tests 

31.07/23. CDC benchmarked against neighbouring authorities in terms of 
training options 

31/07/23. Report produced for the movement to Eventbrite to book 
knowledge and safeguarding training 

31/07/23.  Market examined for Licensing software providers. Feedback 
from other Councils utilising different providers gathered to 
gauge suitability 

31/07/23. Policy changes consideration on CDC requirement to check 
valid insurance throughout life of the Licence. 

31/07/23. CCTV report redrafted 
31/07/23. Emissions report redrafted 
31/07/23. Complaints procedure developed to be utilised between the 

licensing team and departments within CDC 
31/07/23. Plying for hire procedure drafted and agreed for implementation 
31/07/23. Review and amendments made to the Off-sales premises 

inspection record 
31/07/23. Reviewed ‘Revocation Notice’ approach and considered advice 

on this from the Consultant  
31/07/23. Considered and implemented advice from the Consultant in 

respect of the suspensions and return of Council equipment 
31/07/23. Consultant provided advice on the content of the application 

forms to reduce the documents size 
31/07/23. Reviewed Project Documents to reflect wider customers 

benefiting from improvements 
02/08/23. Incorporated outcomes of the Audit Report into the current state 

findings 
02.08.23. Development Team refined Taxi Driver Licence Application 
11.08.23. Assessment of fees and charges for Taxi Licensing and a 

benchmark of CDCs fees and charges against the neighbouring 
authorities’ fees and fleet completed by consultant 

11.08.23. Future State design workshops booked 
16.08.23 Development Team refined Taxi Vehicle Application form and 

provided options to Service 
18.09.23. Future State design workshops completed 
19.08.23. Interim redesigned online Taxi Driver application form go live on 

internet pages 
30.09.23. Future state recommendations shared and discussed 
30.09.23 Licensing online forms for development identified and agreed 
31.10.23. Future State recommendations discussed and agreed 
23/11/23. Go live with revised Webpages 
23.11.23. CDC Web homepage amended to improve visibility of Licensing 

Service 
05.12.23 Plan/evaluate option for a telephone study  
06/12/23. Gather requirements for General enquiry form across all of 

Licensing 
 

Page 15



The initial audit identified 12 actions as part of the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
licensing improvement plan.  Other factors, alongside the work detailed in the table 
above which are worth noting in respect of the service not having scope to have 
fully concluded all the audit actions include 

• The required work of some of the audit actions are interdependent with the new 
information management system that the service procures. 

• An increase in new driver applications has been received since April 2023, it is 
unknown as to the actual reason but believed to be associated with the cost-of-
living crisis and people finding additional work for income. 

• Under resourced team to meet the current demands of the service. Full financial 
review on the true costs to the service has been undertaken which has identified 
that the costs are not a true reflection of the actual costs of the service to meet 
the demands.  This work also identified that to provide the required level of 
service 2 additional members of staff are required to ensure an effective 
service. 

Work still proposed to be undertaken include  

• Develop and go live with Vehicle Process 

• Carry out user acceptance testing with the trade on new products. 

• Develop and go Live with driver process 

• Complete call study and forecast require resources for telephone line opening 

• Secure resources for telephone line opening and open telephone lines 

• Reduce/ close the email channel 

• Design and deliver chat bot/AI telephony opportunities 

 

To date there are 5 audit actions that are continued to be worked on to fully comply 
with the recommendations of the audit.  Please see the following update; 

Documented procedures 

With regard to the update on documented procedures, the full service is undergoing 
a transformation on the information management system that it uses therefore it 
had been agreed that due to the system deficiencies this particular audit action 
would be deferred to late 2024.  As a result, this audit requirement has not been 
fully actioned.  The original intention was to purchase a new system from the cloud 
frameworks, however from research with various Local Authorities it was identified 
that such procurement would not provide the service with the best options for 
recourse in the event of issues experienced.  Therefore, the service has 
undertaken a full procurement exercise for the tender of a new information 
management system which closed on the 12.01.24 and is now subject to the 
evaluation/moderation process of the business and ICT.  Upon successful 
procurement, the proposal is for the introduction and implementation of a new 

Page 16



system from April 2024 which will run alongside the existing system, to allow for a 
phased approach of the system across all Regulation and Enforcement services.   

Due to the existing information management system no longer being an available 
product from April 2024, the service is currently undertaking an exercise to upgrade 
the version of the Assure system serving the licensing team as well as merging the 
combined system of M3/Assure product to other service areas.  

The team have been significantly involved with business analyst colleagues and 
have been involved in creating a mapping process of the work/task areas 
associated with HC/PH licensing.  This mapping process has enabled the team to 
focus on areas where improvements were required to enable a better level of 
service. Such work has assisted in the webpage upgrade and development of new 
online forms (of 48 forms serving the team – to date 23 have been completed with 
a go live of 2) for assisting in providing a new image and an improved customer 
journey. 

A complaints procedure has been developed in relation to complaints being 
referred from Education and/ or vulnerable adults departments. This has been 
shared and agreed between departments to ensure that there is a robust process 
of sharing vital information in relation to a concern/complaint.   

Reporting of management information from Assure 

This audit action is reliant upon the change to the information management system, 
however in such absence the team have continued to work with the existing system 
for modifying reporting mechanisms associated with HC/PH licensing tasks to 
ensure that there is confidence in the reporting results.  To date the team have 
reviewed, and either reconfigured or rebuilt the following areas of work to ensure 
that there is confidence with the reporting module. 

• All current drivers and email address report   

• Licensed vehicle date of registration and fuel type (emissions) report  

• All current vehicle licence holder and email address report 

• Licensing workload percentage bar report 

• Licensing workload pie chart report 

• Private Hire Operators and email addresses report 

To date the modified reports have demonstrated confidence in the reported results 
as duplicate recorded have now been weeded from the system. 

Prior to the implementation of the procured information management system, the 
services current system will be upgraded to the latest version by March 2024. We 
have been informed that the current reporting format will be installed on the test 
server for us to query the data, therefore it is not envisaged that the reporting 
modules we have created will be impacted.  A period of testing is intended to be  

 

Page 17



undertaken prior to going live to ensure that the reporting modules will continue run 
in the format designed.   

Spot checks/Inspections 

Since April 2023 the team have undertaken 7 joint evening operations with SYP in 
terms of ad hoc checks of HC/PH vehicles, as a result of this work the team have 
checked 151 vehicles. Issues identified were mostly to do with Door stickers 
missing HC/PH plates not displayed correctly & not wearing drivers badge while 
working, these have all been addressed with the HC/PH drivers to ensure 
compliance of the licensing requirements. Inspections of Operators have been 
undertaken across the borough, this work was prioritised and actioned in terms of 
addressing the larger organisations’ potential for more risk due to volume of 
drivers.  The team have checked the larger operators/city centre located 
businesses; no significant concerns were highlighted. The renewal of this task for 
the larger/city centre operators is set for the first quarter of the next financial 
year.  For borough wide/smaller/individual operators the team have sent 
questionnaires prior to Christmas to those operators, with a requirement to respond 
by 14.01.24 to assist the team in determining a risk-rating based inspection 
programme for the next 12 months where those identified as ‘high risk’ will be 
prioritised for an in-depth inspection over those who are rated as a ‘low risk’ 
operator.  To date 30 responses have been received and no issues identified.  The 
intention is for this audit action to be completed no later than July 2024. 

Regrettably, the team have experienced a delay in completing this audit action due 
to various work strands which were classified as higher priority needing action, 
which resulted in officers moving away from business-as-usual work.  The other 
aspects of work undertaken included the assurance that all HC/PH drivers licensed 
by the Licensing Authority are on the DBS update service and provided consent. 
This resulted in resources being spent in ensuring that the trade was compliant with 
the licensing requirement as well as suspending a number of HC/PH drivers for 
none compliance of the DBS requirement. As a result of this work Doncaster’s 
Licensing Authority operates at a higher standard than neighbouring authorities 
who’s approach has been to introduce the requirement at the point of driver’s 
licence renewal, which could take up to 3 years to be compliant with the Department 
for Transport. 

The team have also introduced and implemented an external system set up for the 
booking of knowledge and safeguarding training events to avoid the experiences 
of duplicated bookings, funding taken but no dates available and double booking 
of training dates/times.  Since the introduction of the rapid improvement plan (RIP), 
all members of the licensing team have been heavily involved with the various 
business analyst workshops/scoping and testing reviews with the shared view of 
improving the customer experience and developing a streamlined service for the 
processing and assessment of required data. 

Consulting on the Mandatory Introduction of CCTV 

Following the outcome of the Audit, the Council employed an independent licensing 
consultant to act as critical friend and undertake a wider health check on the 
Council’s licensing service.  The consultant assisted with many aspects of licensing 

Page 18



business, including undertaking a review of the report which considered the 
mandatory introduction of CCTV in all licensed vehicles, initially considered by the 
licensing committee in June 2022. It was determined that due to the long-term 
impact of Covid on the trade, which brought about a sustained downturn in the night-
time economy, compounded by the current cost-of-living crisis (which has delivered 
a further blow to the taxi licensing industry), the context to this original ambition had 
clearly changed. Consequently, following discussions with the Chair of the 
Licensing Committee and senior political leadership it has been agreed that at 
present, consultation on the introduction of CCTV will be deferred until such a time 
that the ongoing effect of the cost-of-living crisis on the trade and consumers alike 
reduces. The authority will of course continue to review its commitment to 
implement consultation on these matters. 

This decision has been publicised on the City of Doncaster Councils website to the 
trade via a status update on the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy. 

Renewal Reports 

As a result of the work undertaken by the independent consultant, it was 
recommended that some parts of the renewals policy should be considered and 
changed to allow for the policy to continue to ensure people’s safety but also to 
streamline the service to allow more proactive checks to be carried out by the team 
and ensure licence holders comply with legislation, the policy and licensing 
conditions. 

Proposed policy changes included current practice around the multiple checks of 
insurance documents and medical certificates.  The recommendations made in 
relation to vehicle insurance identified this as a policy requirement that places 
unnecessary additional requirements on an already stretched licensing team.  The 
current regime is that the licensing team run a report to identify those drivers whose 
cover has lapsed during the licence period, contact those owners and those who 
fail to provide evidence of continuous insurance cover have their vehicle licence 
suspended.  It is proposed, therefore, to amend the policy to require Doncaster 
Licensing Team to check the vehicle is correctly insured upon grant / renewal of the 
vehicle licence but then, in line with other Local Authorities, incorporate any further 
checks as part of private hire operator checks. This will see compliance officers 
making enquiries as to what checks are carried out by the operator to ensure that 
the vehicles operated by them are licensed, insured, have a valid mot, an in date 
council inspection and are road worthy. The law states that drivers of all vehicles, 
including Taxis, must hold valid insurance. It should be noted that these checks will 
continue to form part of coordinated roadside operations with South Yorkshire 
Police  

In the interim and until the proposed policy changes can be agreed, in order to meet 
the requirement of the audit report, the team have rebuilt and tested a reporting tool 
in the system to extract data relating to insurance documents. To date reports to 
identify drivers whose insurance cover has lapsed during the licence period has 
been collated, reminder letters have been created and sent to drivers. 

Page 19



The proposed policy changes for interim insurance checks and a change to policy 
in relation to medical certification, will be contained in a report to be brought to 
committee in due course. 

Also, in addition to these proposed policy changes, in November 2023 the DFT 
published the document ‘Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Best Practice Guidance 
for Licensing Authorities’.  This new guidance proposes a number of changes in 
relation to best practice and a report outlining all of the recommendations and 
implications for the service, will also be brought forward to committee, once the 
implications for the service and current policy are determined.  

The Council’s licensing unit is a small, but incredibly busy and high-profile area of 
council business, which has made significant achievements managing the volume 
of work associated with the function. This has been down to the continued hard 
work and commitment of all team members who have positively embraced the 
challenges and areas for improvement highlighted by the Audit report.   It is worth 
noting that complaints relating to the service have fallen by over 50% from 53 
received in 2022 to just 22  in the year to date.  

 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

6. There are no specific options to consider within this report.  The report aims to 
provide a detailed update to members on positive progress to date.  

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

7.  Not applicable. 
 

8. Legal Implications  [MC Churchman 24.1.24] 
 

The Council has a number of statutory duties regarding various licensing 
functions.  In the context of this report, those functions arise from the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 and the Town Police Clauses 
Act 1847. Statutory guidance and Audit recommendations will assist the Council in 
carrying out its functions.  
 

9. Financial Implications [Officer Initials: _RT_ | Date: _23/01/24______] 
There are no direct financial implications attached to the update given in this report. 
The service is in the middle of undergoing a procurement exercise to secure a new 
management information system to service all departments of Regulation and 
Enforcement which will be implemented by March 2026, this is being done via a 
capital scheme costing £250k. 
 
In addition to this Regulation and Enforcement are also updating the existing NEC 
system costing £52,725 which will again benefit the taxi licensing function and help 
achieve the audit objectives. 
 

10. Human Resources Implications There are no direct HR Implications in relation 
to this report. [Officer Initials: AA | Date: 23/01/2024] 

 

Page 20



11. Technology Implications [Officer Initials: PW | Date: 23/01/24] 

Digital & ICT are working closely with the Licensing service and the Business 
Analysis Team in Customer Services to develop and deliver the technology needed 
to support the identified improvements.  Work is in progress to build a new solution 
for the Taxi Vehicle License process that will include multi-forms to allow customers 
to only complete the required parts at the correct point in the process, instead of 
one large form with multiple calls, stopping points and vulnerabilities previously 
leading to timeouts. This solution will also include a new look and feel “portal” style 
front end, allowing customers to part save their applications and show their progress 
in the process and a booking component that will have team admin access and an 
audit trail. This technology will also be used for the Driver Licence process, along 
with the development of an additional 40 online request forms. This whole solution 
is in progress with staggered go live dates and a projected completion date of 31st 
March 2024.   

 
Work is also underway to upgrade and complete the migration of M3 Public 
Protection to Assure and to support with the evaluation of a replacement information 
management system. 

 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

12. There are no risks and assumptions associated with this report as no decisions 
are being recommended or taken. 

CONSULTATION 

13.  No specific consultation has been undertaken in respect of this report. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

14. Not Applicable  

 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

15.  HC/PH – Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 

 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  

Claire Bignell – Head of Service Regulation and Enforcement 

01302 737535 | claire.bignell@doncaster.gov.uk 

Page 21

mailto:claire.bignell@doncaster.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report 
 
 

Date: 1 February 2024 

To the Chair and Members of the AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Report Title: CYPF Commissioning Arrangements 
 

Relevant Cabinet 
Member(s) 

Wards Affected Key Decision? 

Cllr Lani-Mae Ball 
Cllr Rachael Blake 

All No 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide Members with transparency on 
procurement activity which has not been compliant with the requirements of 
Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) and to offer assurance regarding the 
commissioning activities and plans for the Children, Young People and Families 
Directorate (CYPF).  Additionally, it will provide assurance by outlining the 
commissioning plans and strategies for engaging with providers. 
 

2. Contractual spend within the CYPF Directorate for the rolling year (December 2022 
to December 2023) totalled £75 million.  Of this expenditure 72% is compliant with 
contractual rules and of the 28% non-compliant spend the main categories of 
spend relating to this are detailed below.  

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 
3. The table below summarises the 4 main categories of non-compliant contract 

spend in accordance with Contract Procedure Rules. 

Category 

Compliant 
Contract 
spend 

Non-Compliant 
Contract 
Spend 

% Non-
Compliant  

Children Residential care 
             
5,834,975.70  

               
7,245,798.38  

                    
55.39 

16 plus Supported Living 
Services  

                 
485,011.12  

               
4,370,874.12  

                    
90.01  

Independent fostering 
Agencies 

             
5,919,386.31  

               
1,306,820.36  

                    
18.08  

Adoption therapy services  
                 
658,370.28  

                   
102,763.09  

                    
13.50  

  
           
12,897,743.41  

             
13,026,255.95  

                    
50.25  

 

EXEMPT REPORT 

4.  This report is not exempt 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

5. To note the significant measures in place for placements/commissioned packages 
that are recorded as not being compliant with Contract Procedure Rules and to 
provide details of the controls and mitigations that are in place and future work with 
the market to attempt to mitigate further non-compliant spend.  
 

6. For the CYPF Directorate, supported by the Head of Procurement, to provide an 
update in October 2024 to the Audit Committee, that details the current status of 
the spend on placements and work to date to improve and mitigate the existing 
issues.   

 
7. To note work undertaken by the CYPF Directorate and Commissioning Team in 

conjunction with Strategic Procurement Team (SPT) to ensure compliance and 
delivery of services.  

 

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

8. By implementing the arrangements outlined in this paper, the City of Doncaster 
Council will continue to fulfil its obligations to meet the needs of some of the most 
vulnerable residents, with a focus on delivering best outcomes for Children and 
Young People. Work will be undertaken with stakeholders including providers, to 
develop and shape the markets, exploring new and innovative ways of working to 
meet their needs and make best use of available resources via compliant routes to 
procurement.  

 

 

Page 24



BACKGROUND 

9. The majority of non-compliant spend relates to individual placements for children 
and young people, this includes education and residential placements provided by 
independent providers. Non-compliant contract spend for children's placements 
refers to the expenditure made on contracts or agreements that do not fully meet 
the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. The CPRs set rules and procedures on 
how Council contracts must be let, and where the total contract value breaches 
certain financial thresholds, what the minimum requirements are for calling for 
competition. Although the CPRs are not fully adhered to for various reasons 
children's placements are carefully monitored and evaluated for contract 
compliance. This includes conducting thorough background checks on providers, 
ensuring adherence to legal and ethical standards, and regularly assessing the 
quality of care and support provided. 
 

10. Local authorities have statutory duties in relation to the children taken into their 
care. Section 22(3) of the Children Act 1989 establishes the general duty of the 
local authority who looks after a child to safeguard and promote the child's welfare. 
This duty underpins all local authority activity involving looked after children.  

 
11. The SEND Code of Practice 2014 includes the voice of the young person and 

family in the decision-making process for a placement. At times this results in 
placing with an off-contract providers due to parental preference.  

 
12. The Competitions and Markets Authority launched a market study into children’s 

social care in England. The placements market – the arrangements by which local 
authorities’ source and purchase placements for children – plays an important role 
in the provision of residential and fostering placements for children.  As such the 
Children’s Social Care market study March 2022 was in response to major 
concerns regarding how the placements market was operating. The report detailed 
that local authorities were too often unable to access appropriate placements to 
meet the needs of children in their care and that the prices paid by local authorities 
were high and this, combined with growing numbers of looked-after children has 
led to a national problem in securing services with a lack of placements of the right 
kind, in the right places. The report highlighted that the largest private providers of 
placements are making materially higher profits, and charging materially higher 
prices, than would be expected if this market were functioning effectively. Over 
three-quarters of places in England and Wales now come from these independent 
providers. This has led to the difficulties local authorities face in finding appropriate 
placements, in the right locations, for children as they need them and means 
children a being placed far from their established communities. The current 
shortfall in capacity in the placements ‘market therefore represents a fundamental 
failing in market functioning. This lack of ability to engage effectively with the 
market has led to local authorities having to contract outside established local and 
regional arrangements. 
 
 
 

Page 25



13. Since Doncaster Children’s Services Trust (DCST) transferred back to the City of 
Doncaster Council (CDC) in September 2022, all contracts relating to spend on 
Children’s services novated to the council and are now required to be compliant 
with the Council CPRs.  

 
14. Spend on children’s placements is managed through a number of local and 

regional frameworks. The frameworks are a contracting mechanism to identify and 
contract provision: 

a. Three local frameworks cover contracted spend for 16 plus Group Living 
and Supported Tenancies Accommodation, Short Breaks and Specialist 
Education Provision. These three frameworks have been fully 
recommissioned in 2023. 

b. Three regional frameworks administered through The White Rose 
Framework led by Leeds City Council covers Residential, Special 
Education   and Independent Fostering Agencies. 

c. The Regional Adoption Agency procure Adoption Support Fund 
providers who are on the Approved Provider list held by North Yorkshire. 
 

15. Throughout 2023, significant market engagement has been undertaken to engage 
providers on the local and regional frameworks. 
 

16. Where providers are not part of local or regional frameworks spot purchases have 
been necessary to meet needs and provision not available via framework 
providers. Where services are procured off framework governance and controls 
are in place to mitigate risks of non-compliant spend as much as possible, albeit 
the contracts are spot purchased based on child’s needs, parental choice or in 
emergency situations.  

 
17. A large number of providers of residential care have pulled away from the regional 

White Rose Framework which has led to contractual gaps as shown in the figures 
for on and off contract spend for children’s residential care.  This trend is the same 
across all other local authorities in the region and is due in part to contracting with 
providers who are outside of the city and national providers who do not look to join 
regional frameworks.  

 
18. The 16 plus Group Living and Supported Tenancies Accommodation local 

framework was set up in September 2023 and following intensive market 
engagement has been successful in engaging providers. The high level of off 
contract spend (90%) in this area will decrease as these providers transfer their 
contracts onto the framework including legacy placements made before the new 
framework was in place. This work is underway which will see a significant 
reduction in the level of off contract spend for this area.  Since 2023 this service 
has become OFSTED regulated and as such, we expect to see an increase in 
providers joining the framework as they see the benefits of networking and local 
support.  

 

 

Page 26



 
19. Contractual spend with Independent Fostering Agencies is largely on contract 

through the regional White Rose Framework, however where agencies are not 
willing to join the regional framework this will mirror the reasons stated for the 
Children’s residential framework.  

 
20. Adoption therapy services are contracted with a large number of small providers 

with options currently being explored for an approved provider list which will reduce 
off contract spend. 

 
21. Placements are highly regulated through panel and decision-making processes for 

individual education and care packages. The decision makers for all panel 
decisions are the City of Doncaster Council Assistant Directors who chair the 
panels, and the NHS South Yorkshire Integrated Care Boards (SYICB) Senior 
Contracts Manager for jointly commissioned and funded placements. Decision-
making is aided by members of the panel and require cases to be presented by 
service managers/lead practitioners and signed off by Head of Service before 
being referred to panel and must represent best use of resources and value for 
money. The purpose of all panels is to ensure that placement decisions are in the 
best interest of children, young people and families, and represent best value for 
money, and that the placements and packages offered are directly proportionate 
to a child, young person and the families assessed needs. 
 

22. SEND and Inclusion Quality Assurance Panel consider the following requests 
for education placements: 

a. Children with SEND 
b. Special school places in independent schools/colleges incl. travel 
c. Transport costs 
d. Additional support requirements to support individuals or cohorts of 

children with SEND in mainstream settings. 
 

23. Joint Resource Panel consider the following requests: 
a. Bi-Part or Tri Part Funding 
b. Require funding from Health – including Therapy and IFR 
c. Short Breaks resource over the indicative budget 
d. Section 117 requests 
Where an emergency decision is needed, and a decision is made outside 
of panel progression to JRP will be required if joint or tri-part funding is 
required. 

    
24. Social Care Placement Panel coordinates the oversight of packages on a child-

by-child level to ensure that appropriate care plans and support are in place and 
that the placement meets the presenting need.  

a. Children living in a residential home – both internal and external to 
Doncaster 

b. Children in 16+ accommodation 
c. Children in secure or remand settings 
d. Children in an IFA where there is additionally 

Page 27



e. Oversight of delivery of commissioned social care providers 
f. Transport costs 
g. Accommodation / placement over the age of 18 

 
 

25. Placements process and use of regulated providers 
For placements, officers will explore alternative options to meet needs prior to 
commissioning any external provision. Where Panel agrees commissioning of a 
placement, the search will initially go to local and regional framework providers 
who are Good or Outstanding with OFSTED. If they are unable to meet need the 
search is extended to include approved providers e.g., Section 44 or known 
providers who have satisfied due diligence requirements before any approaches 
are made to any off-contract provision.  

 
26. Due Diligence 

This is a contractual requirement and is completed with all providers, where 
possible prior to contracting with them, or as an immediate action before placing 
children and young people to ensure the council fulfils its Duty of Care. Minimum 
compliance checks include safeguarding processes, safer recruitment, 
insurances, references. Placements cannot be made until these checks are 
complete. Once the young person is in placement, this becomes part of the 
regular Quality Assurance and Contract Monitoring Cycle, which covers due 
diligence and compliance. 

 

27. Quality Assurance  
The City of Doncaster Council has a duty to assess all providers commissioned 
to deliver services for children and young people, to ensure full compliance with 
the requirements set out in section 11 of the Children Act 2004. A regular cycle 
of Quality Assurance Monitoring is in place for all providers, prioritised according 
to the risk level of the contract/regulatory judgement and as a minimum, 
conducted annually. Many visits are multi-Disciplinary with feedback sought from 
a range of Services including Social Worker, Independent Reviewing Officer and 
Local Area Designated Officer prior to the visit. The Quality Assurance 
Framework covers a range of areas including  

a. Education 
b. Health 
c. Protection of Children 
d. Care Planning  
e. Safer Recruitment 
f. Health & Safety  
g. Overview of staffing in place 

 Should a safeguarding/OFSTED concern arise, an unannounced visit will be
 completed, and an action plan developed for any follow up actions. 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

28. For all providers to join the Framework mechanisms. 
Both regional and local frameworks give the legal basis to enable providers to 
contract with the council and to assure the quality and compliance of provision, 
support safeguarding, manage costs and provide compliance with CPRs. 
This will support and mitigate against non-compliant spend, but due to associated 
complexities in the provider market this will be an on-going process. Working with 
the provider market either through the White Rose Framework or the development 
of further local agreements has seen some success in increasing providers on 
frameworks but continuing to meet needs will require the continued procurement 
of specific and specialist provision by means of spot purchases. 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

29. The Councils CPRs allow for exemptions on Health and Social Care contracts 
where the recipient of care has a personal choice and directly contracts with the 
care provider including direct payments included under Section 31 – 36 of the 
Care Act 2014, section 57 – 58 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001, section 
12A of the NHS Act 2006 and section 17A of the Children Act 1989. Where 
contract spend is not covered by the exemptions but where there is a need to 
award a contract that has not complied with the competitive requirements of the 
CPRs a waiver is completed.  Due to the number of waivers that would be 
required for children’s placements the Commissioning Team will instead complete 
a quarterly submission detailing all placements that have been awarded outside 
the current frameworks, where the Council have had no choice  to place due to 
their statutory obligations.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

30. The proposed approach to ensuring transparency regarding non-compliant spend 
seeks to mitigate risk.  It is important that the Council’s CPRs are adhered to and, 
where non-compliance is identified this is managed by the CYPF Commissioning 
Team and monitored through the Strategic Procurement Team.  
 

31. Due to the instability and failure in the market nationally and the continuing need 
to place children as per the Council’s statutory obligations, non-compliant spend 
will continue.  However, for transparency a quarterly report stating the rationale of 
urgent need will be produced by the Commissioning Team.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES 

32.   

Great 8 Priority  Positive 
Overall 

Mix of 
Positive & 
Negative 

Trade-
offs to 

consider 
– 

Negative 
overall 

Neutral or 
No 

implications 

 
Tackling Climate 
Change     

Comments: This is considered when procuring and forms part of the social value 
deliverables obtained through contracting. 

 
Developing the skills 
to thrive in life and in 
work 

    
Comments: Social value is included in all public procurement above threshold 
contracting as a minimum of 10% weighting in the evaluation criteria. Part of the 
social value targets are associated with opportunities to develop skills. 
 Making Doncaster the 

best  
place to do business 
and create good jobs 

    
Comments: Social value is included in all public procurement above £100k 
contracting as a minimum of 10% weighting in the evaluation criteria. Part of the 
social value targets are associated with opportunities to create opportunities for 
local people. 
 Building opportunities 

for  
healthier, happier and 
longer lives for all 

    
Comments: Support residents to live independent and rewarding lives in the place 
they call home (The 16+ Group Living and Supported Tenancies Accommodation  
Framework and Short Breaks) 
Work towards becoming an even more Disability-Friendly borough.(Short  
Breaks) 
 Creating safer, 

stronger,  
greener and cleaner  
communities where 
everyone belongs 

   X 

Page 30



Comments: 

 
Nurturing a child and  
family-friendly 
borough 

   X 
Comments: Increase the availability and quality placements and activities for 
families and young people. 

 Building Transport 
and digital 
connections fit for the 
future 

   X 
Comments: 

 Promoting the 
borough and its 
cultural, sporting, and 
heritage opportunities 

   X 
Comments 

Fair & Inclusive     
Comments: This is covered as part of the social value delivered through 
contracting at the Council. 

 

33. Legal Implications [Officer Initials: SRF | Date: 10.01.24] 
 
As set out in the body of the report, the Council has legal duties in relation to looked 
after children. Services for those children (including the provision of 
accommodation) should be commissioned in accordance with Council Contract 
Procedure Rules as well as the appropriate guidance to ensure that the wishes of 
the child, their families and the best interests of the child are all appropriately 
considered. 
 

34. Financial Implications [Officer Initials: AB | Date:12/01/2024] 

The total spend figures shown in paragraph’s 2 and 3 cover the period December 
2022 to December 2023. The spend in the period December 2022 to 31st March 
2023 was included in CYPF’s yearend outturn position for the financial year 

Page 31



2022/23, and the spend from 1st April 2023 onwards is included in CYPF’s financial 
projections for financial year 2023/24. These financial projections don’t break down 
spend into compliant and non-compliant categories, which is managed as set out 
in this report, but the total spend is monitored against budget on a monthly basis 
by the directorate and reported quarterly to cabinet. 

 
35. Human Resources Implications [Officer Initials: KW | Date: 11/01/2024] 

 
There are no Human Resource implications 
 

36. Technology Implications [Officer Initials: PW | Date: 09/01/2024] 

There are no technology implications in relation to this report. 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

37. Contracting can be high risk if undertaken without full compliance with the CPRs. 
Quarterly reporting of non-compliant spend and compliance monitoring will seek to 
counter and address these risks. 

CONSULTATION 

38.  There has been consultation with the various services in the CYPF Directorate 
and applicable officers. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

39.  None 

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

40. CYPF – Children, Young People and Families  
DCST – Doncaster Children Services Trust 
SPT – Strategic Procurement Team 
CMA – Competition Markets Authority 
CPRs – Contract Procedure Rules 

 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTOR 

Riana Nelson, Director Children Young People and Families  

Riana.Nelson@doncaster.gov.uk 

Angela Harrington, Head of Commissioning and Quality  

 Angela.Harrington@doncaster.gov.uk  

Shaun Ferron, Procurement Manager  

Shaun.Ferron@doncaster.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 32

mailto:Riana.Nelson@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:Angela.Harrington@doncaster.gov.uk
mailto:Shaun.Ferron@doncaster.gov.uk


 

October 

 

 

 

Report 
 
 

 Date: 1st February 2024 

To: The Chair and Members of the Audit Committee 

Report Title: INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE PERIOD: October 2023 to 
December 2023  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1. The report attached at Appendix 1 updates the Audit Committee on the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit for the period of October to December 2023.  

2. The attached report is in four sections: 
Section 1. The Audit Plan / Revisions to the Plan  
Section 2. Audit Work Undertaken During the Period 
Section 3. Implementation of Management Actions arising from Audit 

Recommendations 
Section 4. Internal Audit Performance 

3. A summary of the main points from each of the sections is provided in the 
following paragraphs: 

Section 1: The Audit Plan / Revisions to the Plan  
4. The original plan was approved at the April 2023 Audit Committee and will be 

continually reviewed throughout the year in accordance with best practice and 
our agile approach to auditing. Section 1 sets out further detail and significant 
changes in this period. 

Section 2: Audit Work Undertaken During the Period 
5.  During the period October to December, our work has been on our routine and 

planned audits and on the lessons learnt reviews requested by management, 
alongside other investigatory and consultancy work. We have also been 
developing our data driven work in some areas which is referred to in Section 2. 

6. Resources, as planned, have continued to be used in successfully developing the 
team’s auditing methodologies and reporting arrangements. Training continues 
being rolled out to all members of the team and to a new member of the team. 

7. Our ongoing work in establishing and updating our detailed risk assessments is 
also helping to support the prioritisation of our work. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



Section 3: Progress on the implementation of Management Actions arising 
from Internal Audit recommendations  
8.There are currently no high risk level overdue management actions    

9. The total number of overdue medium and low risk level management actions has 
increased slightly from 8 to 12. Revised implementation dates have been agreed 
for these actions requiring a further extension of time.  

10. In total for all audit agreed management actions there are 26 Internal Audit actions 
awaiting implementation, 14 of which are not yet due. 

11. Despite the small increase in overdue actions, the Head of Internal Audit does 
not have concerns with regards management’s commitment to implementing their 
agreed actions which continue to be scrutinised also through the quarterly 
Finance and Performance arrangements. We will continue to tightly monitor and 
manage this area. 

Section 4: Performance Information  
12. Key operational indicators are over the timeliness of the issue of draft and final 

reports and these have all been issued within target timescales.  

13. Results relating to major recommendations and customer satisfaction remain 
positive, with.100% of critical or major recommendations agreed and 100% of 
Customer Satisfaction Surveys rated Satisfactory or above 

14.  The plan for the remainder of the financial year has been assessed and the Head 
of Internal Audit considers that sufficient work will be delivered to be able to 
provide his opinion on the Council’s risk, governance and control arrangements. 
He will however be placing additional reliance on other wider sources of 
assurance to support this opinion in addition to the planned audit work. 

15. The work delivered by the audit team provides a source of intelligence for the 
Annual Governance Statement. The work delivered in the year to date, has only 
identified one new area of concern that should be considered for inclusion in the 
Annual Governance Statement for 2023/24. This is the Climate Change 
Governance Arrangements highlighted within the report.  

16. However, work completed in the year to date has not identified any reason to 
result in a negative or limited annual opinion over the council’s risk, governance 
and control arrangements. 

EXEMPT REPORT 

17. The report does not contain exempt information. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

18. The Audit Committee is asked to note: 
• the position of the Internal Audit plan  
• the Internal Audit work completed in the period 
• the position with regards the implementation of management actions 

arising from Internal Audit recommendations 
• the current position regarding the ability to deliver the annual opinion over 

the council’s risk, governance and control arrangements 

Page 34



WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER? 

19. Effective Internal Audit arrangements add value to the Council in managing its risks 
and achieving its key priorities of improving services provided to the citizens of the 
borough. 

BACKGROUND 

20. This report provides the Audit Committee with information on the outcomes from 
internal audit work and allows the Committee to discharge its responsibility for 
monitoring Internal Audit activity. 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

21. Not applicable – for information only 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED OPTION 

22. Not applicable – for information only 

23. Legal Implications 
 

Legal implications were not requested in relation to this report. 
 

24. Financial Implications  
 
Financial implications were not requested in relation to this report. 
 

25. Human Resources Implications  
 

Human Resources implications were not requested in relation to this report. 

26. Technology Implications  

 Technology implications were not requested in relation to this report. 
 

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

27. The implementation of internal audit recommendations is a response to identified 
risks and hence is an effective risk management action. 

CONSULTATION 

28.  There is consultation with managers at the outset, throughout and at the conclusion 
of individual audits in order to ensure that the work undertaken and findings are 
relevant to the risks identified and are accurate. Regular meetings are held with 
Senior Management to ensure there is effective and relevant Internal Audit 
coverage provided. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

29. United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, audit working files and 
management information, customer satisfaction responses. 

 

Page 35



GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

30. None  

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS  

Peter Jackson, Head of Internal Audit 

01302 862938 | peter.jackson@doncaster.gov.uk 

Faye Tyas, Assistant Director of Finance & Technology  

01302 862606 | faye.tyas@doncaster.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36

mailto:faye.tyas@doncaster.gov.uk


 

Appendix 1 

 

Doncaster Council 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

October to December 2023 
  

Page 37



Section 1: Revisions to the Audit Plan 
1.1 The 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee on 27th 

April 2023. As the audit year progresses, the plan is reviewed to take account of 
any new and emerging risks and any responsive work arising. Additional work 
undertaken is added to the plan and is resourced by the deletion or deferral of the 
assessed lowest risk work items. This is well established best practice and in line 
with our agreed Strategy. The staffing resources available have reduced since the 
original Audit plan was approved due to unsuccessful recruitment exercises, 
although we now have a new temporary member of the team which will help the 
team resource in future quarters. The future impact of these vacancies on the plan 
continues to be assessed and managed. 

 1.2 Significant changes to the plan for the period are set out below, and further 
changes will continue to be made as the year progresses in accordance with our 
strategy to reflect new and emerging risk, changing priorities and to reflect 
resources available within the team.  

1.3 New significant pieces of work added to the work plan in the quarter are: 

• Voluntary Action Doncaster (VAD) Grant Funding Arrangements – This 
work is to ensure all grant funding provided to VAD has been fully 
accounted for.  

• Well Doncaster – Grant Funding Arrangements - this work is to ensure all 
grant funding provided by Well Doncaster has been fully accounted for. 

• Community Development and Support Fund Grant Set Up Advice 2023/24 

1.4 Items of work removed from the plan include those set out below: - 

• SLHD Contract Management and Partnership Working Arrangements 
2023/24 – No formal review will now take place due to other oversight 
arrangements. Instead, ad hoc advice will continue to be provided as 
required. 

• Mosaic Care and Case Flows – work will be delivered in this area on a more 
service targeted basis within the 2024/25 plan as no audit issues have been 
identified by services. 

• Levelling Up Fund Grant Sign Off (Phase 1) 2023/24 – this grant work has 
been deferred into the 2024/25 workplan at the works will not be completed 
until 2024/25 after a funding extension. 

 
1.5 We continue to work with all relevant teams within the Council to ensure our 

ongoing planned work for the year remains relevant and adds maximum values to 
the Council. We also continue sense checking our planning and approach with 
other Audit Teams in the regions that are in our working network. Our ongoing 
work in establishing and updating our detailed risk assessments is also helping to 
support the prioritisation of our work. This ensures that audit resources continue 
to be targeted to reviewing the highest risks to the Council. 

 
 
 

Page 38



Section 2: Audit Work Undertaken During the Period 
2.1  During the period October to December, our work has been on our routine and 

planned audits and on the lessons learnt reviews requested by management, 
alongside other investigatory and consultancy work. We have also been 
developing our data driven work in some areas. An update is set out at para 2.13 
and further detail will be provided in the Annual Report of the Head of Internal 
Audit. 

2.2 Resources, as planned, have continued to be used in successfully developing 
the team’s auditing methodologies and reporting arrangements. Training 
continued being rolled out to all members of the team and to a new member of 
the team. 

2.3 Our ongoing work in establishing and updating our detailed risk assessments is 
also helping to support the prioritisation of our work. 

2.4  Internal Audit provides an opinion on the control environment for all systems, 
services, or functions, which are subject to planned audit review. The opinions 
given are considered when forming our overall annual opinion on the adequacy 
and satisfactory operation of the Council’s governance, risk management and 
internal control arrangements at the end of the year.  

Internal Audit Opinion 

2.5 A “substantial assurance” opinion is given where there are no or low levels of 
concern. A “reasonable assurance” opinion is given where there are issues of 
concern that need to be addressed which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. A “limited assurance” opinion is given in any area 
under examination where one or more concerns of a ‘fundamental’ nature are 
identified or where there are a considerable number of issues of concern arising 
which need addressing. A ‘no assurance’ opinion is given where immediate action 
is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance 
identified in the area under review, although ‘no assurance’ opinions are 
extremely rare. 

Summary of Findings from Audit Reviews 

2.6 Summary conclusions on all significant audit work completed October to 
December 2023 and any completed work not previously reported, are set out in 
Appendix A.  

Audits providing ‘limited’ assurance opinions  
2.7 There has been one audit where a ‘limited assurance’ opinion has been given 

this period.  
Climate Change Governance Arrangements 23/24 
2.8 In order to be more resilient to the threat posed by climate change and in addition 

to meeting the challenges of achieving net zero, it is vital that we effectively 
manage climate change risks. With this in mind, a review of the governance 
arrangements in place for managing climate change risks, was undertaken. This 
resulted in a limited assurance opinion and 14 recommendations being made. 

Page 39



Whilst we acknowledged the breadth and depth of work being delivered, 
governance arrangements need to be developed to ensure there is accurate 
reporting of progress to an accountable body, that can ensure appropriate 
resource and activity allocation is in place.  

2.9 It should be noted that the Council only has control over the processes within its 
own organisation. Although the review did examine the Council’s actions to 
influence and try to coordinate Team Doncaster partners response to tackling 
climate change, this is not within the Councils direct control. There are also 
dependencies upon Central Government actions and compliance with certain 
interrelated Government policies and stipulations, which are further beyond the 
Council’s control. Due to this, even when the agreed actions arising from the 
review are implemented, it is unlikely, at this point in the ‘tackling climate change’ 
journey, that this risk can be managed by the Council further than to give 
‘reasonable assurance’. 

2.10 The headline reasons for this opinion were:- 

• The estimated scale of the anticipated required resource (both cost and 
capacity) to meet the pledge of being carbon neutral by 2040 (for the council or 
the borough) is not currently known. A central government commissioned 
report, however, does calculate this cost for London and the 11 UK core cities 
alone as being in excess of £200 billion. On the same basis, a per capita 
calculation would suggest a cost of £9 billion for Doncaster to meet net zero 
targets. 

• There is no single record of the entirety of all net zero and climate change 
related potential actions to be considered / taken, together with evaluations / 
priority ratings and resource requirements. 

• Monitoring and reporting of the Council’s progress towards achieving 85% 
reductions in carbon emissions by 2030 or net zero by 2040 has not previously 
happened but reporting on some aspects under the Council’s control is due to 
commence imminently.  

• For the rest of Doncaster, at present, the Council is reliant on government 
data (provided every 2 years) to assess the progress that the city is making 
towards net zero carbon emissions. All local authority areas are in this same 
position, as data collection and evaluation methods are still under development 
nationally. 

• A Team Doncaster Environment Network Officer Group’s Terms of 
Reference makes it responsible for driving delivery of the Environment and 
Sustainability Strategy. Whilst this group has made sustained efforts to co-
ordinate and inspire climate action across Team Doncaster partners, this 

Page 40



current governance structure’s outcomes in driving progress for the Borough 
has not proven to be effective and is under review. 

• The Council has taken the lead on tackling climate change with the formation 
of the Sustainability Unit in 2021 to co-ordinate delivery of the Environment and 
Sustainability Strategy. There is no high-level Environment focussed internal 
council group currently in operation that oversees and directs the Council’s 
response to climate change on a strategic or operational level and which 
provides regular scrutiny and challenge. 

• The scale of climate change risks to the council i.e. the total exposure of the 
organisation, or to the Borough as a whole, is not currently known. 

A comprehensive set of management actions have been agreed and are being 
implemented (4 of the 14 agreed management actions have already been 
implemented). These will be tracked, and progress reported to future meetings of 
the Audit Committee. 

Responsive Audit Work and Investigations 
2.11  In addition to our planned assurance work, we also investigate allegations of 

fraud, corruption or other irregularity and/or error, and respond to requests for 
assistance from services and functions in the Council. This area is covered in 
detail within the Annual Preventing and Detecting Fraud and Error Report. 

School Governance and Financial Management Improvement  

Controls Risk Self-Assessment (CRSA) 

2.12 This advice and consultancy piece of work involved the development of a Control 
Risk Self-Assessment framework (CRSA) to be delivered to all LA maintained 
schools.  Over recent years there has been limited internal auditing of LA 
Maintained Schools, this was due to the perceived level of risk being classed as 
relatively low for the Council. The school’s Control Risk Self-Assessment (CRSA) 
framework was launched in December 2023 and required all maintained schools 
to complete it.  

2.13 This is seen as a powerful tool that can be used to support the school in self 
assessing their risks and controls and to identify any possible areas that may 
require strengthening. It also provides Internal Audit with valuable oversight and 
assurance from our LA schools with the outcome forming part of the risk 
assessment for schools.  

2.14 The collective information will also be used to help determine whether certain 
pieces of work are required in the future for example training, additional resources, 
supporting guidance, thematic audit reviews that will benefit our maintained 
schools going forward. Overall, this work adds value through improving 
governance and financial management arrangements within schools and 
identifying areas where improvements are needed. 

 
 

Page 41



School Recruitment Follow up Work 
2.15 Further advice and consultancy work has been undertaken with the School 

Improvement Team to help them develop and refresh the Headteacher 
Recruitment Guidance and training for Local Authority Maintained schools. This 
work has added value to the Headteacher Recruitment process by ensuring that 
there is a clearly documented robust process in place that is enhanced with 
specific bias training for governors sitting on interview panels and that all issues 
identified from the lessons learnt review have been incorporated. The guidance 
and the training is successfully being rolled out to Local Authority maintained 
schools. 

Data Driven Work 

Purchase Cards 

2.16 Data analytics and the use of data for audit purposes is a development topic on 
the audit agenda for over the last 3 audit years. During this year we have 
developed (to beta testing stage) an analytical tool in PowerBi looking at purchase 
card transactions and their associated authorisation and coding within the financial 
accounts. This tool has been developed with Procurement and Transactional 
Processing in order to attempt to give the ability to slice and manipulate data to all 
three teams.  

2.17 The dashboard takes audit themes and key controls and interprets the data to 
show whether these key controls are functional and identifies potential anomalies. 
This beta data has been used to successfully target departments using the 
purchase cards that are buying unusual purchases, do not appear to be properly 
claiming VAT or where there are delays in the processing of the transactions 
(amongst other issues). Data analytics is an involved process that requires a 
constantly evolving review of the subject matter / data and review of the outputs 
to ask further "what if?" questions to gain further insight into systems and data 
than are available during conventional risk and control-based audits.     

2.18  It is hoped that the data analytics, given sufficient time and resources, will replace 
most (if not all) of the routine cyclical financial control audits with more up to date,  
innovative and useful tools to gain insights into the inner workings of teams and 
add real value. For example, the Purchase Card Tool has successfully identified 
over £6k of savings in unclaimed VAT (over just 2 teams identified by the system 
for review). Further savings are likely as this tool is further developed and used to 
target areas of higher risk (and therefore give more assurance over the financial 
systems). 

  

 

 

Page 42



Section 3: Implementation of Management Actions arising from Audit 
Recommendations 
3.1 Following the completion of audit work, improvement plans are produced in 

consultation with service management containing details of actions and dates 
agreed by management for their implementation. Final reports, incorporating 
agreed improvement plans, are then formally issued to the appropriate Director, 
Assistant Director and Head of Service. 

3.2 Internal Audit subsequently seeks assurance that agreed actions arising from 
audit work have actually been implemented and are effectively managing any 
risks previously identified. This involves contacting the officer allocated to 
complete the action to obtain evidence that agreed actions have been 
implemented or, where they have not, that appropriate progress is being made. 
Where fundamental weaknesses in internal control arrangements have been 
identified, more detailed follow up work is undertaken. 

3.3 Any agreed management actions that are not implemented in line with agreed 
timescales require Assistant Director authorisation for a time extension and are 
reported as part of the Council’s Quarterly Resource Management processes 
and consequently monitored through that process. Additionally, Assistant 
Directors are provided each month with details of all actions outstanding in their 
area and these are then reviewed with Internal Audit and the Director and their 
management teams each quarter. Overdue high risk level management actions 
are reported routinely by Internal Audit to the Audit Committee as are numbers 
of outstanding lower-level management actions. This has also been further 
refined following concerns raised by the Audit Committee to that when it is clear 
that implementation of actions is proving problematic then future date revisions 
will be approved by the Director and escalated to the Chief Executive when 
necessary. 

3.4 The total number of actions which are overdue i.e. that have passed their original 
agreed implementation date has increased to 12 in total, there being 0 high level 
management actions and 12 medium / lower level management actions. A 
breakdown of these by Directorate is detailed in the table below. All these 
management actions have had revised dates agreed by their relevant Assistant 
Directors and we will tightly monitor and report on the achievement of these 
revised dates.  

3.5 There are no areas of concern covering the 12 medium / lower level overdue 
management actions. The 5 in Adults, Wellbeing and Culture all relate to one 
area, where both the Team Leader and Head of Service have left the authority 
leaving less capacity to implement the actions currently. The 7 in Place relate 
to 2 different audits, both with 1 action overdue and the remaining 5 actions 
overdue relate to the Taxi Licencing audit which are covered within a separate 
report considered at this meeting of the Audit Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



3.6 The detail of the high-level management actions and revised implementation 
dates is provided in Appendix B.  

Directorate Number of high-risk level 
management actions 

overdue  

Number of medium / lower risk 
level management actions 

overdue  
 At 

31/03/
2023 

At 
30/06/
2023 

At 
30/09/
2023 

At 
31/12/
2023 

At 
31/03/2

023 

At 
30/06/ 

2023 

At 
30/09/ 
2023 

At 
31/12/ 
2023 

Adults, 
Wellbeing & 
Culture  

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 

Place 0 1 0 0 3 3 8 7 (7)* 

Corporate 
Resources  

0 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 

Chief Executives N/A N/A 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 

Corporate 
Resources and 
Chief Executives 

N/A N/A 0 0 N/A N/A 0 0 

Children, Young 
People & 
Families ** 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 1 0 0 6 5 8 12 

* The figure in brackets denotes the number of findings that were overdue last quarter and remain 
overdue. 

** These figures do not include the number of actions arising from the 4 school audits / investigation 
completed as these traditionally generate a high number of action and have different ratings for 
the school to work to and therefore reporting these figures would disproportionately misrepresent 
the Council’s position. 

3.7 Reviews have been carried out at three schools to assess the adequacy of both 
governance and financial arrangements. Two schools were given reasonable assurance 
opinions and the other, limited assurance. School 4 is the Primary school that was 
subject to a fraud investigation. The status of the agreed actions is set out below. All 
actions for School 3 are now complete. Progress has halted at other schools, however 
and we will continue our escalations within the schools and Council management.  

 

Page 44



  
Total Number of Issues 

Raised 
Number of 

Management Action 
Overdue as at 31/12/23 

Number of 
Management Actions 

Not Yet Due 

School Assurance 
Opinion 

High Medium Low High Medium Low High Medium Low 

School 
1  

Reasonable 
Assurance 

9 13 0 5 8 0 0 0 0 

School 
2  

Limited 
Assurance 

10 13 1 1 5 0 0 0 0 

School 
3 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

13 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

School 
4  

N/A 
Investigation 

31 14 5 1 3 0 0 0 0 

Totals  50 40 6 7 16 0 0 0 0 

3.8 The spread of all agreed management actions awaiting implementation 
including those not yet due is shown below. 

Directorate No. of actions 
at 31/12/2022 

No. of actions 
at 30/06/2023 

No. of actions 
at 30/09/2023 

No. of actions at 
31/12/2023 

Adults, Wellbeing 
and Culture 

0 0 9 8 

Place 5 12 10 13 
Corporate 
Resources 11 6 0 2 
Chief Executives N/A N/A 0 0 
Chief Executives 
and Corporate 
Resources 

N/A N/A 3* 3* 

Children, Young 
People and 
Families ** 

0 2 0 0 

TOTAL 16 20 22 26 

* These three actions have joint ownership between officers within both directorates. 

** These figures do not include the number of actions arising from the 4 school audits / 
investigation completed as these traditionally generate a high number of action and have 
different ratings for the school to work to and therefore reporting these figures would 
disproportionately misrepresent the Council’s position 

 

Page 45



3.9 Despite the small increase in overdue actions, the Head of Internal Audit does 
not have concerns with regards management’s commitment to implementing 
their agreed actions which continue to be scrutinised also through the quarterly 
Finance and Performance arrangements. We will continue to tightly monitor and 
manage this area. 

Section 4: Internal Audit Performance  
Performance Indicators  
4.1 The Audit Committee has previously agreed the key performance indicators that 

should be reported to it relating to the performance of the Internal Audit service. 

4.2 Key indicators are over the timeliness of the issue of draft and final reports and 
these have all been issue within target timescales. 

4.3 Results relating to major recommendations and customer satisfaction remain 
positive, with 100% of critical or major recommendations agreed and 100% of 
Customer Satisfaction Surveys rated Satisfactory or above.  
The indicators are shown below along with current performance for the period 
October to December 2023:  

Performance Indicator Target July to 
October 2023 

Variance 
(positive is 

good) 
Draft reports issued within 15 days of field 
work being completed  

90% 100% +10% 

Final reports issued within 5 days of 
customer response  

90% 100% +10% 

% of critical or major recommendations 
agreed 

100% 100%  0% 

Percentage of Customer Satisfaction Surveys 
rated Satisfactory or above 

90% 100% 
 

+10% 

Rolling Audit Opinion over Risk, Governance and Control Arrangements and 
Annual Governance Statement Items 
 

4.4 The plan for the rest of the Financial Year has been assessed and the Head of 
Internal Audit considers that sufficient work will be delivered to be able to provide 
his opinion on the Council’s, risk governance and control arrangements. He will 
however be placing additional reliance on other wider sources of assurance to 
support this opinion in addition to the planned audit work. 

4.5 The work delivered by the audit team provides a source of intelligence for the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS).  The work delivered in the year to date, 
has only identified one new area of concern that should be considered for 
inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement for 2023/24. This is the Climate 
Change Governance Arrangements highlighted within this report. 

4.6 However, work completed in the year to date has not identified any reason to 
result in a negative or limited annual opinion over the council’s risk, governance 
and control arrangements. 

Page 46



 

APPENDIX A 

Planned Audit Work Completed in Period   

 
Audit Area 

 
Assurance Objective 

Final Report to 
Management 

Overall 
Audit 

Opinion 

Summary of Significant 
Issues 

PLACE 
Climate Change Governance 
Arrangements 23/24 

The objectives of this audit were to 
review the governance arrangements 
in place for managing climate change 
risks and make recommendations to 
improve the above processes or to 
mitigate any further risk exposures. 

December 2023 Limited 
Assurance  

A summary is set out in 
the main body on this 
report. 

Building Control Income Management 
Review  

The objectives of this audit were to 
examine the processes within the 
Building Control function to ensure 
that all income due is accurately billed 
on a timely basis, appropriately 
recorded and maximised and make 
recommendations to improve the 
above processes or to mitigate any 
further risk exposures. 

 

 

January 2024 Substantial 
Assurance 

None 

P
age 47



 
Audit Area 

 
Assurance Objective 

Final Report to 
Management 

Overall 
Audit 

Opinion 

Summary of Significant 
Issues 

ADULTS WELLBEING AND CULTURE 
Libraries Purchase Card Transactions The objective of the audit was to 

review purchase card spend and 
ensure that it is in line with the various 
rules and polices that apply to it whilst 
ensuring that the spend achieves 
value for money, is free from fraud 
and error and that VAT is properly 
recovered where possible. 

December 2023 Substantial 
Assurance 

None 

Positive Steps Purchase Card 
Transactions 

The objective of the audit was to 
review purchase card spend and 
ensure that it is in line with the 
various rules and polices that apply 
to it whilst ensuring that the spend 
achieves value for money, is free 
from fraud and error and that VAT is 
properly recovered where possible. 

November 2023 Substantial 
Assurance 

None 

Supporting Families Grant Q3 2023/24 - 
(October to December Claims) 

Confirm expenditure and that it 
meets the conditions of the grant 
allowing Doncaster Council sign off. 

N/A Not 
Applicable 
– Grant 
Claim 
verification. 
 
 
 

Grant signed, no issues 
raised. 
 
 
 

P
age 48



 
Audit Area 

 
Assurance Objective 

Final Report to 
Management 

Overall 
Audit 

Opinion 

Summary of Significant 
Issues 

PUBLIC HEALTH 
Public Health Purchase Card 
Transactions 23/24 

The objective of the audit was to 
review purchase card spend and 
ensure that it is in line with the various 
rules and polices that apply to it whilst 
ensuring that the spend achieves 
value for money, is free from fraud 
and error and that VAT is properly 
recovered where possible. 

December 2023 Substantial 
Assurance 

None 

CHILDREN YOUNG PEOPLE & FAMILIES 

Home to School Transport Audit Review 
23/24 

The objective of the audit is to 
examine the extent to which the 
operational processes in the Home to 
School Transport Section are 
effectively managed to ensure that 
they provide an efficient, effective and 
safe service to children / young 
adults. 

This review concentrated on the work 
undertaken by the Transport Team 
and did not include a review of the 
decisions that have been made at 
Panel with regards to the transport 

December 2023 Substantial 
Assurance 

None 

P
age 49



 
Audit Area 

 
Assurance Objective 

Final Report to 
Management 

Overall 
Audit 

Opinion 

Summary of Significant 
Issues 

being required and therefore provided 
by City of Doncaster Council. It purely 
focusses on the process from the 
point at which the Transport Team are 
notified that some form of transport is 
required for a child / young adult. 

CORPORATE RESOURCES  
N/A 
 

    

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
N/A 
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 50



                APPENDIX B 

Overdue High Risk Agreed Management Actions 
            

 
Audit Area 

 
Finding 

 
Risk 

Exposure 

 
Action Agreed  

Estimated 
Impl’n 
Date 

Revised 
Impl’n 
Date 

 
Current Status 

There are none for this report. 
 
 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



•

•

•

P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



•

•

•

•

•P
age 62



P
age 63



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Actual Actual Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

D
S

G
 D

e
fi

c
it

 I
n

 Y
e
a
r 

£
m

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 D

S
G

 D
e
fi

c
it

 £
m

Year

DSG Deficit 2020-21 to 2026-27

Cumulative DSG Deficit £m DSG Deficit In Year £m

P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



•

•

•

•

•P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



•

•

•

•

P
age 76



P
age 77



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 78



•

•

•

•

P
age 79



•

•

P
age 80



P
age 81



P
age 82



P
age 83



•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 84



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 85



P
age 86



P
age 87



P
age 88



P
age 89



P
age 90



P
age 91

A
genda Item

 10



P
age 92



•

•

P
age 93



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 94



•

•

•

P
age 95



P
age 96



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 97



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 98



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 99



▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

•

•

•

•

P
age 100



•

•

P
age 101



▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

▪

P
age 102



•

•

•

•

•

P
age 103



•

▪

P
age 104



P
age 105



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 106



•

•

•

•

•

•

We consider 

management’s 

process is 

appropriate 

and key 

assumptions 

are neither 

optimistic or 

cautious 

(Green)







P
age 107



•

•

•

•

We consider 

management’s 

process is 

appropriate and 

key assumptions 

are neither 

optimistic or 

cautious 

(Green)

P
age 108



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

We consider 

management’s 

process is 

appropriate 

(after the 

adjustment 

made to the 

draft accounts 

as stated at 

page 12) and 

key 

assumptions 

are neither 

optimistic or 

cautious 

(Green)










P
age 109



Grants 

Income:

£430.1m

(PY £448.0m)

•

•

•

•

We consider 

management’s 

process is 

appropriate and 

key 

assumptions 

are neither 

optimistic or 

cautious 

(Green) 

P
age 110





Green



Green



Green



Green
N/A - None 



Green



Green



Green



Green
N/A None



Green



Green



Green



Green
N/A- None

Assessment

  






P
age 111



P
age 112



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 113



•

•

•

P
age 114



P
age 115



•

•

•

P
age 116



P
age 117



P
age 118



P
age 119



Appendices





 

 



















P
age 120



P
age 121



✓

✓

✓

P
age 122



P
age 123



✓

✓

✓

P
age 124



✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 125



✓

✓

✓

P
age 126



✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 127



✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 128



✓

✓

P
age 129



P
age 130



P
age 131



.

P
age 132



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 133



[LETTER TO BE WRITTEN ON CLIENT HEADED PAPER]

Grant Thornton UK LLP

No 1 Whitehall Riverside

Leeds LS1 4BN

[Date] – {TO BE DATED SAME DATE AS AUDIT COMMITTEE]

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

City of Doncaster Council

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial 

statements of City of Doncaster Council and its subsidiary undertakings, St Leger 

Homes of Doncaster Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion as to whether the group and Council financial statements are 

presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and applicable law

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as 

we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

i. We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the group and 

Council’s financial statements in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 ("the Code"); in particular 

the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

ii. We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the 

group and Council and these matters have been appropriately reflected and 

disclosed in the financial statements.

iii. The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could 

have a material effect on the group and Council financial statements in the event 

of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of 

any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and 

maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

v. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 

those measured at fair value, are reasonable. We are satisfied that the material 

judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly 

based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial 

statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and 

considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source data that would be 

equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives 

were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, 

the data and the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting 

estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, 

measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and 

adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

vi. We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 

valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits 

disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements 

and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also 

confirm that all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and 

properly accounted for. 

vii. Except as disclosed in the group and Council financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent

b. none of the assets of the group and Council have been assigned, 

pledged or mortgaged

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or 

non-recurring items requiring separate disclosure.

viii. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted 

for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial 

Reporting Standards and the Code.

P
age 134



ix. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or 

disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

x. We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and 

disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The 

group and Council financial statements have been amended for these 

misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of 

material misstatements, including omissions.

xi. We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your 

Audit Findings Report . We have not adjusted the financial statements for these 

misstatements brought to our attention as they are immaterial to the results of 

the Council and its financial position at the year-end. The financial statements 

are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xii. Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed 

in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards. 

xiii. We have considered whether the Council is required to reflect a liability in 

respect of equal pay claims within its financial statements. We confirm that we 

are satisfied that no liability needs to be recognised on the grounds that:

• The Council settled all such claims prior to and during 2016-17 and there are no 

such existing claims from the work done by the Council

• After 2016-17, the Council has not received notification of any potential equal pay 

claims through the Advisory, Concilliation, and Arbitration Service (ACAS), Early 

Conciliation process, through it’s Employment Relations Forum or through it’s 

internal governance process

• The Council has undertaken work such as job evaluation schemes to identify any 

such potential liabilities and non has been found.

xiv. We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xv. We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that 

the group and Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going 

concern basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going 

concern on the grounds  that :

a. the nature of the group and Council means that, notwithstanding any 

intention to cease the group and Council operations in their current form, 

it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of 

accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be 

expected to continue to be delivered by related public authorities and 

preparing the financial statements on a going concern basis will still 

provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entry to prepare its 

financial statements on the basis of the presumption set out under a) 

above; and 

c. the group and Council’s system of internal control has not identified any 

events or conditions relevant to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the group and Council's 

ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial 

statements 

xvi. We have considered whether accounting transactions have complied with the 

requirements of the Local Government Housing Act 1989 in respect of the 

Housing Revenue Account ring-fence.

xvii. The group and Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that 

could have a material effect on the group and Council’s financial statements in 

the event of non-compliance.

Information Provided

xviii. We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 

preparation of the group and Council’s financial statements such as 

records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose 

of your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from 

whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

P
age 135



xix. We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 

management is aware.

xx. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected 

in the financial statements.

xxi. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 

financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xxii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud 

that we are aware of and that affects the group and Council, and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.

xxiii. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 

suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by 

employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

xxiv. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected 

non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered 

when preparing financial statements.

xxv. We have disclosed to you the identity of the group and Council's related parties 

and all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxvi. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims 

whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxvii. We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the 

Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are 

not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxviii. The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of 

the group and Council's financial and operating performance over the period 

covered by the financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit 

Committee at its meeting on 23 November 2023. 

Yours faithfully

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Signed on behalf of the Council

P
age 136



Independent auditor's report to the members of City of 

Doncaster Council 

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of City of Doncaster Council  (the ‘Authority’) and its 

subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise, the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, 

the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Account, the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, the Collection 

Fund Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Group 

Movement in Reserves Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement 

and notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in 

their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23. 

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Authority as at 31 

March 2023 and of the group’s expenditure and income and the Authority’s expenditure 

and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 

and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the Code of Audit 

Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the group and the Authority in 

accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 

in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Chief Financial Officer and 

Assistant Director of Finance and Technology’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group and the Authority’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Authority or the group to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of Finance and 

Technology’s conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 

that the Authority’s and group’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, 

we considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the 

group and the Authority. In doing so we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 

Audit of financial statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom 

(Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We 

assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the group and Authority and 

the group and Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Financial Officer and 

Assistant Director of Finance and Technology’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 

the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 

to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the 

Authority’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve 

months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of 

Finance and Technology with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of 

this report.

P
age 137



Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Governance Statement 

and the Statement of Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. The Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of Finance and Technology is 

responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 

other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 

is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit 

Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on behalf of 

the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider 

whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘Delivering Good Governance 

in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE, or is 

misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not 

required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls 

or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements, the other information published together with the financial statements in the 

Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 

consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit 

and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 

law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at 

the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of 

Finance and Technology

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its 

officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is 

the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of Finance and Technology. The Chief Financial 

Officer and Assistant Director of Finance and Technology is responsible for the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 

practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2022/23, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 

internal control as the  Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of Finance and Technology 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Director of 

Finance and Technology is responsible for assessing the Authority’s and the group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant 

national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority and the group without the transfer of its 

services to another public sector entity.

P
age 138



Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these financial statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of 

non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our procedures are capable of 

detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the 

group and Authority and determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to 

specific assertions in the financial statements are those related to the reporting frameworks (the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, 

the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the 

Local Government Act 2003, the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Local 

Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992) and 

the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the group and Authority’s 

policies and procedures relating to:

• the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

• the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

• the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance 

with laws and regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware 

of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any 

knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority and group’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and 

opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the evaluation of the risk 

of management override of controls. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:

- material closing journals posted during the preparation of the financial statements 

including periods 12 and 13

- material and unusual journals which fall outside the auditor’s expectations which are 

considered as high risk journals such as journals posted by senior management, journals 

posted by staff not in the journals posting approval list, journals with no descriptions, 

journals with unusual descriptions which are outside our expectations and non-routine.  

Our audit procedures involved:

• evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to 

prevent and detect fraud,

• journal entry testing, with a focus on above high-risk journals 

• challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant 

accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings valuation and pension asset and 

liability valuation; and

• assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our 

procedures on the related financial statement item.

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error and detecting 

irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional 

misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is 

from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would 

become aware of it.

We remained alert to any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including 

fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the 

group and Authority’s engagement team included consideration of the engagement team's:

• understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature 

and complexity through appropriate training and participation

• knowledge of the local government sector in which the group and Authority operates

P
age 139



• understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority and group 

including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

• the Authority and group’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure 

and its services and of its objectives and strategies to understand the classes of 

transactions, account balances, expected financial statement disclosures and business 

risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

• the Authority and group's control environment, including the policies and procedures 

implemented by the Authority and group to ensure compliance with the requirements of 

the financial reporting framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 

the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 

description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not 

been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2023.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will be reported in our 

commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual Report. If we identify any 

significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be reported by exception in a further 

auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on our opinion on 

the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be 

satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 

whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 

guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in January 2023. This guidance sets out 

the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these 

arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary on 

arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it 

can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 

manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information 

about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these 

three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and 

commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there 

is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of 

the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for City of Doncaster Council 

for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed:

• our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources 

P
age 140

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


• the work necessary to issue our Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) Component 

Assurance statement for the Authority for the year ended 31 March 2023.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2023.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 [and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement 

of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments 

Limited]. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members 

those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To 

the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 

than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for 

the opinions we have formed.

Signature

Gareth Mills, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Leeds

Date: TBCP
age 141



P
age 142



P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd November 2023.
	5 Audit Committee Action Log.
	6 An update on the Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Licensing Service Review/ Rapid Improvement Project.
	7 CYPF Commissioning Arrangements.
	Report Title: CYPF Commissioning Arrangements
	27.	Quality Assurance
	The City of Doncaster Council has a duty to assess all providers commissioned to deliver services for children and young people, to ensure full compliance with the requirements set out in section 11 of the Children Act 2004. A regular cycle of Quality Assurance Monitoring is in place for all providers, prioritised according to the risk level of the contract/regulatory judgement and as a minimum, conducted annually. Many visits are multi-Disciplinary with feedback sought from a range of Services including Social Worker, Independent Reviewing Officer and Local Area Designated Officer prior to the visit. The Quality Assurance Framework covers a range of areas including
	a.	Education
	b.	Health
	c.	Protection of Children
	d.	Care Planning
	e.	Safer Recruitment
	f.	Health & Safety
	g.	Overview of staffing in place
	Should a safeguarding/OFSTED concern arise, an unannounced visit will be	completed, and an action plan developed for any follow up actions.
	OPTIONS CONSIDERED

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report for the period: October to December 2023.
	1.1	The 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee on 27th April 2023. As the audit year progresses, the plan is reviewed to take account of any new and emerging risks and any responsive work arising. Additional work undertaken is added to the plan and is resourced by the deletion or deferral of the assessed lowest risk work items. This is well established best practice and in line with our agreed Strategy. The staffing resources available have reduced since the original Audit plan was approved due to unsuccessful recruitment exercises, although we now have a new temporary member of the team which will help the team resource in future quarters. The future impact of these vacancies on the plan continues to be assessed and managed.
	1.2 Significant changes to the plan for the period are set out below, and further changes will continue to be made as the year progresses in accordance with our strategy to reflect new and emerging risk, changing priorities and to reflect resources available within the team.
	1.3 New significant pieces of work added to the work plan in the quarter are:
		Voluntary Action Doncaster (VAD) Grant Funding Arrangements – This work is to ensure all grant funding provided to VAD has been fully accounted for.
		Well Doncaster – Grant Funding Arrangements - this work is to ensure all grant funding provided by Well Doncaster has been fully accounted for.
		Community Development and Support Fund Grant Set Up Advice 2023/24
	1.4 Items of work removed from the plan include those set out below: -
		SLHD Contract Management and Partnership Working Arrangements 2023/24 – No formal review will now take place due to other oversight arrangements. Instead, ad hoc advice will continue to be provided as required.
		Mosaic Care and Case Flows – work will be delivered in this area on a more service targeted basis within the 2024/25 plan as no audit issues have been identified by services.
		Levelling Up Fund Grant Sign Off (Phase 1) 2023/24 – this grant work has been deferred into the 2024/25 workplan at the works will not be completed until 2024/25 after a funding extension.
	1.5 We continue to work with all relevant teams within the Council to ensure our ongoing planned work for the year remains relevant and adds maximum values to the Council. We also continue sense checking our planning and approach with other Audit Teams in the regions that are in our working network. Our ongoing work in establishing and updating our detailed risk assessments is also helping to support the prioritisation of our work. This ensures that audit resources continue to be targeted to reviewing the highest risks to the Council.
	Section 2: Audit Work Undertaken During the Period
	2.1 	During the period October to December, our work has been on our routine and planned audits and on the lessons learnt reviews requested by management, alongside other investigatory and consultancy work. We have also been developing our data driven work in some areas. An update is set out at para 2.13 and further detail will be provided in the Annual Report of the Head of Internal Audit.
	2.4 	Internal Audit provides an opinion on the control environment for all systems, services, or functions, which are subject to planned audit review. The opinions given are considered when forming our overall annual opinion on the adequacy and satisfactory operation of the Council’s governance, risk management and internal control arrangements at the end of the year.
	Internal Audit Opinion
	2.5	A “substantial assurance” opinion is given where there are no or low levels of concern. A “reasonable assurance” opinion is given where there are issues of concern that need to be addressed which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the area audited. A “limited assurance” opinion is given in any area under examination where one or more concerns of a ‘fundamental’ nature are identified or where there are a considerable number of issues of concern arising which need addressing. A ‘no assurance’ opinion is given where immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified in the area under review, although ‘no assurance’ opinions are extremely rare.
	Summary of Findings from Audit Reviews
	2.6	Summary conclusions on all significant audit work completed October to December 2023 and any completed work not previously reported, are set out in Appendix A.
	Audits providing ‘limited’ assurance opinions
	2.7	There has been one audit where a ‘limited assurance’ opinion has been given this period.
	Climate Change Governance Arrangements 23/24
	Responsive Audit Work and Investigations
	2.11 	In addition to our planned assurance work, we also investigate allegations of fraud, corruption or other irregularity and/or error, and respond to requests for assistance from services and functions in the Council. This area is covered in detail within the Annual Preventing and Detecting Fraud and Error Report.
	School Recruitment Follow up Work
	Section 3: Implementation of Management Actions arising from Audit Recommendations
	3.1	Following the completion of audit work, improvement plans are produced in consultation with service management containing details of actions and dates agreed by management for their implementation. Final reports, incorporating agreed improvement plans, are then formally issued to the appropriate Director, Assistant Director and Head of Service.
	3.2	Internal Audit subsequently seeks assurance that agreed actions arising from audit work have actually been implemented and are effectively managing any risks previously identified. This involves contacting the officer allocated to complete the action to obtain evidence that agreed actions have been implemented or, where they have not, that appropriate progress is being made. Where fundamental weaknesses in internal control arrangements have been identified, more detailed follow up work is undertaken.
	3.3 Any agreed management actions that are not implemented in line with agreed timescales require Assistant Director authorisation for a time extension and are reported as part of the Council’s Quarterly Resource Management processes and consequently monitored through that process. Additionally, Assistant Directors are provided each month with details of all actions outstanding in their area and these are then reviewed with Internal Audit and the Director and their management teams each quarter. Overdue high risk level management actions are reported routinely by Internal Audit to the Audit Committee as are numbers of outstanding lower-level management actions. This has also been further refined following concerns raised by the Audit Committee to that when it is clear that implementation of actions is proving problematic then future date revisions will be approved by the Director and escalated to the Chief Executive when necessary.
	3.4 The total number of actions which are overdue i.e. that have passed their original agreed implementation date has increased to 12 in total, there being 0 high level management actions and 12 medium / lower level management actions. A breakdown of these by Directorate is detailed in the table below. All these management actions have had revised dates agreed by their relevant Assistant Directors and we will tightly monitor and report on the achievement of these revised dates.
	3.5	There are no areas of concern covering the 12 medium / lower level overdue management actions. The 5 in Adults, Wellbeing and Culture all relate to one area, where both the Team Leader and Head of Service have left the authority leaving less capacity to implement the actions currently. The 7 in Place relate to 2 different audits, both with 1 action overdue and the remaining 5 actions overdue relate to the Taxi Licencing audit which are covered within a separate report considered at this meeting of the Audit Committee.
	3.6	The detail of the high-level management actions and revised implementation dates is provided in Appendix B.
	3.8	The spread of all agreed management actions awaiting implementation including those not yet due is shown below.
	Section 4: Internal Audit Performance
	APPENDIX A
	Planned Audit Work Completed in Period

	9 Grant Thornton Auditor’s Annual Report 2022/23.
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 5: Executive summary (continued)
	Slide 6: 2. Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 7: 3. Key recommendation
	Slide 8: 3. Key recommendation (continued)
	Slide 9: 4. Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Council’s use of resources
	Slide 10: 5. The current LG landscape
	Slide 11: The current LG landscape (continued)
	Slide 12: 6. Financial sustainability
	Slide 13: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 14: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 15: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 16: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 17: Financial sustainability (continued)
	Slide 18: 7. Improvement recommendations
	Slide 19: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 20: 8. Governance
	Slide 21: Governance (continued)
	Slide 22: Governance (continued)
	Slide 23: Governance (continued)
	Slide 24: 9. Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 25: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 26: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 27: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 28: Improving economy,  efficiency and effectiveness (continued)
	Slide 29: 10. Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 30: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 31: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 32: 11. Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 33: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 34: 12. Other reporting requirements
	Slide 35
	Slide 36: Appendix A: Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 37: Appendix B: An explanatory note on recommendations
	Slide 38

	10 Grant Thornton - Audit Findings (ISA 260) report 2022/23 - Final Version - Information only.
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings (ISA 260) Report for City of Doncaster Council      
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: 1. Headlines
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 2. Financial Statements 
	Slide 6: 2. Financial Statements
	Slide 7: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 8: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 9: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial Statements - Significant risks
	Slide 14: 2. Financial Statements: Key findings arising from the Group audit 
	Slide 15: 2. Financial Statements – new issues and risks 
	Slide 16: 2. Financial Statements – new issues and risks 
	Slide 17: 2. Financial Statements – key judgements and estimates
	Slide 18: 2. Financial Statements – key judgements and estimates
	Slide 19: 2. Financial Statements - key judgements & estimates
	Slide 20: 2. Financial Statements - key judgements and estimates
	Slide 21: 2. Financial Statements: Information Technology
	Slide 22: 2. Financial Statements - other communication requirements
	Slide 23: 2. Financial Statements: other communication requirements
	Slide 24: 2. Financial Statements - other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 25: 3. Value for Money arrangements  
	Slide 26: 3. VFM - our procedures and conclusions  
	Slide 27: 4. Independence and ethics 
	Slide 28: 4. Independence and ethics (continued) 
	Slide 29
	Slide 30: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 31: B. Action Plan – Audit of Financial Statements
	Slide 32: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 33: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 34: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 35: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 36: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 37: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 38: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 39: D. Audit Adjustments
	Slide 40: D. Audit Adjustments (continued)
	Slide 41: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 42: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 43: F. Auditing developments
	Slide 44: G. Management Letter of Representation (draft) 
	Slide 45: G. Management Letter of Representation (draft) 
	Slide 46: G. Management Letter of Representation (draft) 
	Slide 47: H. Audit opinion (proposed) 
	Slide 48: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 49: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 50: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 51: H. Audit opinion  
	Slide 52: I. Audit letter in respect of delayed VFM work  
	Slide 53


